VILLAGE OF

rer 1874 MEETING AGENDA
VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Tuesday, January 4, 2022
7:00 P.M.
MEMORIAL HALL — MEMORIAL BUILDING
19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, lllinois
(Tentative & Subject to Change)
. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

a) Special Meeting of November 30, 2021
b) Regular Meeting of December 14, 2021

VILLAGE PRESIDENT’S REPORT

. CITIZENS’ PETITIONS* (Pertaining to items appearing on this agenda)

. FIRST READINGS - INTRODUCTION**

Items included for First Reading - Introduction may be disposed of in any one of the following ways:
(1) moved to Consent Agenda for the subsequent meeting of the Board of Trustees; (2) moved to
Second Reading/Non-Consent Agenda for consideration at a future meeting of the Board of Trustees;
or (3) referred to Committee of the Whole or appropriate Board or Commission. {(Note that zoning
matters will not be included on any Consent Agenda; all zoning matters will be afforded a First and a
Second Reading. Zoning matters indicated below by **.)

Environment & Public Services (Chair Byrnes)

a) Approve the purchase of two (2) 2023 Peterbilt Model 548s through the Sourcewell

Purchasing Agreement #060920-PMC, Bolingbrook, IL in the amount of $440,267.28
Zoning & Public Safety (Chair Stifflear) |

b) Approve an Ordinance Approving a Special Use Permit to Operate a Physical Fitness
Facility (Martial Arts Studio) in the B-1 Community Business Zoning District at 777 N. York
Road, Unit 21 (IJKLM,LLC d/b/a Premier Marital Arts) **

c) Approve an Ordinance Approving a Final Plat of Subdivision (820 N. County Line
Road)**

. CONSENT AGENDA

All items listed below have previously had a First Reading of the Board or are considered Routine*** and
will be moved forward by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a
member of the Village Board or citizen so request, in which event the item will be removed from the
Consent Agenda.



Administration & Community Affairs (Chair Posthuma)
a) Approval and payment of the accounts payable for the period of December 9, 2021 through
December 30, 2021 in the aggregate amount of $768,518.26 as set forth on the list provided
by the Village Treasurer, of which a permanent copy is on file with the Village Clerk***

8. SECOND READINGS / NON-CONSENT AGENDA — ADOPTION
These items require action of the Board. Typically, items appearing for Second Reading have
been referred for further discussion/clarification or are zoning cases that require two readings.
In limited instances, items may be included as Non-Consent items and have not had the benefit
of a First Reading due to emergency nature or time sensitivity, or when the item is a referral to
another Board or Commission™***

Zoning & Public Safety (Chair Stifflear)

a) Approve an Ordinance Approving an Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review for an
Existing Building — 4 N. Washington Street — J.P. Morgan Chase** ** (First Reading —
December 14, 2021)

b) Approve an Ordinance Approving an Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review for
Improvements to an Existing Building — 36 E. Hinsdale Avenue — Performance Wealth
Management* (First Reading — December 14, 2021)

9. DISCUSSION ITEMS
a) Tollway update
b) Toliway Flooding Event June 26, 2021

10. DEPARTMENT AND STAFF REPORTS
a) Parks & Recreation

11. REPORTS FROM ADVISORY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

12. CITIZENS’ PETITIONS* (Pertaining to any Village issue)

13. TRUSTEE COMMENTS

14. CLOSED SESSION- 5 ILCS 120/2(c) (1)/(2)/(3)/(5)/(8)/(11)/(21)

15. ADJOURNMENT
*The opportunity to speak to the Village Board pursuant to the Citizens’ Petitions portions of a Village
Board meeting agenda is provided for those who wish to comment on an agenda item or Village of
Hinsdale issue. The Village Board appreciates hearing from our residents and your thoughts and
questions are valued. The Village Board strives to make the best decisions for the Village and public
input is very helpful. Please use the podium as the proceedings are videotaped. Please announce

your name and address before commenting.

**The Village Board reserves the right to take final action on an Item listed as a First
Reading if, pursuant to motion, the Board acts to waive the two reading policy.
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***Routine items appearing on the Consent Agenda may include those items that have
previously had a First Reading, the Accounts Payable and previously budgeted items that
fall within budgetary limitations, has been competitively bid or is part of a State Contract,
and have a total dollar amount of less than $100,000.

****Items included on the Non-Consent Agenda due to “emergency nature or time sensitivity”
are intended to be critical business items rather than policy or procedural changes. Examples
might include a bid that must be awarded prior to a significant price increase or
documentation required by another government agency to complete essential infrastructure
work.

The Village of Hinsdale is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.
Individuals with disabilites who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain
accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have
questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities, are requested to promptly
contact Brad Bloom, ADA Coordinator, at 630-789-7007 or by TDD at 630-789-7022 to allow the
Village of Hinsdale to make reasonable accommodations for those persons.

Website http:/ivillageofhinsdale.org

Page 3



)
VILLAGE OF HINSDALE
VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING
November 30, 2021

The specially scheduled meeting of the Hinsdale Village Board of Trustees was called to order
by Village President Tom Cauley in Memorial Hall of the Memorial Building on Tuesday,
November 30, 2021 at 6:30 p.m., roll call was taken.

Present. President Tom Cauley, Trustees Matthew Posthuma, Luke Stifflear, Michelle Fisher,
Neale Byrnes, Scott Banke

Absent: Trustee Laurel Haarlow

Also Present: Village Manager Kathleen A. Gargano, Assistant Village Manager/Director of
Public Safety Brad Bloom, Police Chief Brian King, Fire Chief John Giannelli, Assistant to the
Village Manager Trevor Bosack, Finance Director Andrea Lamberg, Assistant Finance Director
Alison Brothen, Director of Community Development Robb McGinnis, Director of Public Services
George Peluso Superintendent of Parks & Recreation Heather Bereckis, Human Resources
Director Tracy McLaughlin and Village Clerk Christine Bruton

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

President Cauley led those in attendance in the Pledge of Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES - None
VILLAGE PRESIDENT’S REPORT
No report. |
CITIZENS’ PETITIONS
None.
FIRST READINGS - INTRODUCTION**

Administration & Community Affairs (Chair Posthuma)

a) Approve an Ordinance Amending Title 1 (Administration), Chapter 6 (Village Board of
Trustees), Section 1-6-5(A) (Meetings of the Board) of the Village code relative to start
time for the Village Board of Trustees meetings
Trustee Posthuma introduced the item to change the start time of regular meetings of the
Village Board from 7:30 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. Staff surveyed Board members for consensus, but
the Village code must be updated to reflect the change.

The Board agreed to move this item to the consent agenda of their next meeting.




Village Board of Trustees
Special Meeting of November 30, 2021
Page 2 of 3

b) Review the draft 2022 Annual Budget, for approval on December 14, 2021

Trustee Posthuma introduced the item. Village Manager Kathleen Gargano thanked Finance
Director Andrea Lamberg, Assistant Finance Director Alison Brothen, and Assistant to the
Village Manager Trevor Bosack for their hard work on this budget. She said the highlights of
the budget will be reviewed tonight, and the transmittal letter is a good summary. She also

~ noted that the recent retirement of a Police officer will impact the personnel expenses. These
changes will be reflected in the final document.
Ms. Lamberg made a PowerPoint presentation to review the budget for the Board, beginning
with the 2021 projected General Fund operating results, noting the 25% reserve was easily met.
General Fund revenues are primarily from property taxes, sales tax, and utility tax.
The Board discussed the effect closing the Tollway Oasis will have on these revenue numbers.
Ms. Lamberg will report back with more definitive numbers. General Fund expenses were
reviewed, with personnel and benefits being the largest portion. President Cauley suggested
reviewing the reserve balance mid-year to see if funds over 25% could be used for other
purposes. Ms. Lamberg reviewed the Water/Sewer Fund numbers that include the new tiered
water rates. Ms. Gargano noted there is still water loss, but the watermain replacement program
in the upcoming years will start to correct that loss. Director of Public Services George Peluso
there is an annual leak detection survey that pinpoints leaks that are addressed throughout the
year.
It was noted that road salt and fuel costs have increased, budgeted repairs and maintenance
are higher because of deferred items during COVID. Parking deck maintenance costs are new,
and historic preservation incentives are budgeted at $30,000.
With respect to public safety pensions, the State requires 90% funding by 2040. Ms. Lamberg
will provide the Board with the dollar amounts necessary to get to this level.
Trustee Posthuma asked if there are any bonds with higher interest rates that we can prepay.
Ms. Lamberg has reached out to our bond advisor.
The Board agreed that staff did a great job on the budget;, Ms. Lamberg thanked Ms. Brothen
and Mr. Bosack for their significant efforts in the production of the 2022 Annual Budget.

SECOND READINGS / NON-CONSENT AGENDA — ADOPTION - None

REPORTS FROM ADVISORY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

No reports.

CITIZENS’ PETITIONS
None.

TRUSTEE COMMENTS
None.

ADJOURNMENT



Village Board of Trustees
Special Meeting of November 30, 2021
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There being no further business before the Board, President Cauley asked for a motion to
adjourn. Trustee Banke moved to adjourn the specially scheduled meeting of the
Hinsdale Village Board of Trustees of November 30, 2021. Trustee Byrnes seconded the
motion.

AYES: Trustees Posthuma, Stifflear, Fisher, Byrnes, Banke
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: Trustee Haarlow

Motion carried.

Meeting adjourned at 7:29 p.m.

ATTEST:
Christine M. Bruton, Village Clerk




VILLAGE OF HINSDALE
VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MINUTES OF THE MEETING
December 14, 2021

The regularly scheduled meeting of the Hinsdale Village Board of Trustees was called to order by
Village President Tom Cauley in Memorial Hall of the Memorial Building on Tuesday, December
14,2021 at 7:34 p.m., roll call was taken.

Present: President Tom Cauley, Trustees Matthew Posthuma, Laurel Haarlow, Luke Stifflear,
Michelle Fisher, Neale Byrnes, Scott Banke

Absent: None

Also Present: Village Manager Kathleen A. Gargano, Assistant Village Manager/Director of Public
Safety Brad Bloom, Police Chief Brian King, Fire Chief John Giannelli, Assistant to the Village
Manager Trevor Bosack, Finance Director Andrea Lamberg, Director of Community Development
Robb McGinnis, Superintendent of Parks & Recreation Heather Bereckis, Director of Public
Services George Peluso, HR Director Tracy McLaughlin and Village Clerk Christine Bruton

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
President Cauley led those in attendance in the Pledge of Allegiance.
APPROVAL OF MINUTES

a) Regular Meeting of November 16, 2021
Trustee Posthuma moved to approve the minutes of the regular meeting of November 2,
2021, as presented. Trustee Banke seconded the motion.

AYES: Trustees Posthuma, Stifflear, Fisher, Byrnes, Banke
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: Trustee Haarlow

ABSENT: None

Motion carried.
VILLAGE PRESIDENT’S REPORT

President Cauley pointed out that tonight's agenda includes the approval of the 2022 Budget,
following Board review of the draft document on November 30. The document before the Board
reflects changes following that review; the reduction in wage and benefits as a result of the
retirement of a police officer, the elimination of an $800,000 transfer from the General Fund fo the
‘Water Fund, adjustment of budgeted legal fees to account for pending litigation, and a $150,000
increase in contingency funds.

He also reported that, following feedback from residents, an additional leaf pickup has been
scheduled for Thursday, December 16, and the DuPage County 7-day rolling positivity rate for
COVID-19 is at 6%



Village Board of Trustees
- Meeting of December 14, 2021
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APPROVAL OF SALARY INCREASE - VILLAGE MANAGER

President Cauley introduced the item asking the Board to approve a 3% salary increase for Village
Manager Kathleen Gargano. He complimented her job performance, stating she is competent,
enthusiastic and well-liked by residents. He noted that this increase is consistent with area Village
managers in comparable communities, as is her overall compensation package.

Trustee Byrnes moved to approve an increase in the Village Manager’s salary by 3%. Trustee
Haarlow seconded the motion.

AYES: Trustees Posthuma, Haarlow, Stifflear, Fisher, Byrnes, Banke
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

Motion carried.

CITIZENS’ PETITIONS

None.
FIRST READINGS - INTRODUCTION
Zoning & Public Safety (Chair Stifflear)
a) Approve an Ordinance Approving an Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review for an

b)

Existing Building — 4 N. Washington Street — J.P. Morgan Chase

Trustee Stifflear introduced the item for the Chase Bank building to install (2) parking lot light
poles, and (1) wall mounted light in order to increase safety on site for customers and
employees. He noted the property has no single-family district within 250’ feet of the subject
property. He explained that several different plan iterations were reviewed to protect Eve
Assisted Living residents. The height of the light poles and the foot-candle illumination of the
proposed lighting is code compliant. The Plan Commission unanimously recommended
Board approval (5-0) on the condition that a light shield be included on the east side to stop
any glare to Eve Assisted Living. The applicant agreed to do that.

Mr. Tim Messick, architect, and Mr. Jon Krissoff from Chase Bank, addressed the Board and
described the current parking lot illumination, and stressed the safety and security of
employees parking in the west lot. They plan to have the lights on overnight as there is a 24-
hour ATM on premises. Discussion followed. There was a question as to whether or not the
lights can only be on during business hours. Director of Community Development Robb
McGinnis will verify the code requirements.

The Board agreed to move this item forward for a second reading at their next meeting.

Approve an Ordinance Approving an Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review for
Improvements to an Existing Building — 36 E. Hinsdale Avenue — Performance Wealth
Management

Trustee Stifflear introduced the item noting this is a second floor business proposing changes
to the front and rear facade. This property is in the B-2 historic downtown district, therefore,
the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) and the Plan Commission (PC) reviewed the
application. They made minor adjustments that have been incorporated by the applicant.



Village Board of Trustees
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The amended plans were reviewed by architects Mr. Jim Prisby and Mr. Steve Cashman,
both of whom agree the suggested changes have been incorporated.

Mr. Mike Zalud, architect for the project, addressed the Board summarizing the changes
requested. The main change was not to cover the limestone detail on the building. The new
sighage was approved by the Plan Commission, but will be installed below the limestone
feature. The shutters will be removed, and the awning color in the rear of the building will be
changed from black to blue, so they can direct customers to the blue awning. The dark blue
does not fight with existing black awning.

The Board agreed to move this item forward for a second reading at their next meeting.

CONSENT AGENDA

Administration & Community Affairs (Chair Posthuma)

a) Trustee Haarlow moved Approval and payment of the accounts payable for the period of
November 11, 2021 through December 8, 2021 in the aggregate amount of $1,861,341.64
as set forth on the list provided by the Village Treasurer, of which a permanent copy is
on file with the Village Clerk. Trustee Posthuma seconded the motion.

AYES: Trustees Posthuma, Haarlow, Stifflear, Fisher, Byrnes, Banke
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

Motion carried.
The following items were approved by omnibus vote:

b) Approve an Ordinance Amending Title 1 (Administration), Chapter 6 (Village Board of
Trustees), Section 1-6-5(A) (Meetings of the Board) of the Village code relative to start
time for the Village Board of Trustees meetings (First Reading — November 30, 2021)

c) Approve the Annual Meeting Schedule 2022

Environment & Public Services (Chair Byrnes)

d) Award year two of the Custodial Services Bid #1669 to Bravo Service, Inc., for 2022

custodial services within Village facilities, in the amount not to exceed $72,900
Zoning & Public Safety (Chair Stifflear)

e) Approve payment to Currie Motors, Frankfort, lllinois for the purchase of one new

patrol fleet vehicle in the amount of $35,910

Trustee Banke moved to approve the Consent Agenda,v as presented. Trustee Byrnes
seconded the motion.

AYES: Trustees Posthuma, Haarlow, Stifflear, Fisher, Byrnes, Banke
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

Motion carried.
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SECOND READINGS / NON-CONSENT AGENDA - ADOPTION
Administration & Community Affairs (Chair Posthuma)
a) Approve an Ordinance Levying Taxes for Corporate Purposes for the Fiscal Year of the

d)

Village of Hinsdale, lllinois Commencing on January 1, 2021 and Ending on December
31, 2021 in the aggregate amount of $14,286,413 (First Reading — November 16, 2021)
Trustee Posthuma introduced the final approval of the tax levy and six bond issues.
Approve a Resolution abating the tax hereto levied for the year 2021 to pay the principal
of and interest on $2,710,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Library Fund Tax
Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2013A, of the Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook
Counties, lllinois (First Reading — November 16, 2021)

Approve a Resolution abating the tax hereto levied for the year 2021 to pay the
principal of and interest on $2,025,000 General Obligation Bonds (Waterworks and
Sewerage System Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2014A, of the Village of Hinsdale,
DuPage and Cook Counties, lllinois (First Reading — November 16, 2021)

Approve a Resolution abating the tax hereto levied for the year 2021 to pay the
principal of and interest on $5,000,000 General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue
Source), Series 2014B, of the Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties, lllinois
(First Reading — November 16, 2021)

Approve a Resolution abating the tax hereto levied for the year 2021 to pay the
principal of and interest on $9,775,000 General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue
Source), Series 2017A, of the Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties, lllinois
(First Reading — November 16, 2021)

Approve a Resolution abating the tax hereto levied for the year 2021 to pay the
principal of and interest on $20,000,000 General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue
Source), Series 2018A, of the Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties, lllinois
(First Reading — November 16, 2021)

Approve a Resolution abating the tax hereto levied for the year 2021 to pay the
principal of and interest on $2,655,000 General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue
Source), Series 2021, of the Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties, lllinois
(First Reading — November 16, 2021)

Trustee Posthuma read each item and moved to approve Items a-g. Trustee Haarlow
seconded the motion.

AYES: Trustees Posthuma, Haarlow, Stifflear, Fisher, Byrnes, Banke
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

Motion carried

Approve an Ordinance abating a portion of the tax hereto levied for the year 2021 to
pay the principal of and interest on $1,575,000 Special Service Area Number Thirteen
Bonds, Series 2012B, of the Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties, lllinois
(First Reading — November 16, 2021) '

Trustee Posthuma introduced the item to approve a property tax refund with monies from an
excess fund balance for Special Service Area #13.
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)

k)

Trustee Posthuma moved to Approve an Ordinance abating a portion of the tax hereto
levied for the year 2021 to pay the principal of and interest on $1,575,000 Special
Service Area Number Thirteen Bonds, Series 2012B, of the Village of Hinsdale, DuPage
and Cook Counties, lllinois. Trustee Banke seconded the motion.

AYES: Trustees Posthuma, Haarlow, Stifflear, Fisher, Byrnes, Banke
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

Motion carried

Approve the 2022 Annual Budget (First Reading — November 30, 2021)

Trustee Posthuma introduced the item that was reviewed by the Board at the November 30
special meeting. Minor modifications have been included in this final draft, as noted by the
Village President in his opening remarks.

Trustee Posthuma moved to Approve the 2022 Annual Budget. Trustee Byrnes seconded
the motion.

AYES: Trustees Posthuma, Haarlow, Stifflear, Fisher, Byrnes, Banke
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

Motion carried.

Approve Blanket Purchase Orders for Calendar Year 2022 totaling $684,537 and
waiving the competitive bid requirements, where applicable (First Reading — November
16, 2021)

Trustee Posthuma introduced the item explaining this item approves multiple invoices from
the same vendor throughout the year. The list of vendors is the same as last year.

Trustee Posthuma moved to Approve Blanket Purchase Orders for Calendar Year 2022
totaling $684,537 and waiving the competitive bid requirements, where applicable.
Trustee Banke seconded the motion.

AYES: Trustees Posthuma, Haarlow, Stifflear, Fisher, Byrnes, Banke
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

Motion carried

Approve participation in the National Opioid Settlement Agreement and Authorizing
the Village Manager to Execute the Related Participation Agreements and any other
Documents Necessary to Facilitate Participation

Trustee Posthuma introduced that item that is being presented as a second reading due to
time sensitivity. The Village must opt in by January 2, 2022 to participate. [n July 2021, a
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b)

nationwide settlement was announced in multi-district federal litigation against opioid
distributors and manufacturers. This is a $22.7 billion settlement, of which lllinois is expected
to receive 3.3% of the proceeds. Opting in will release all claims against the named parties,
and the proceeds must be used to mitigate opioid abuse in the Village. The Board agreed
there was no reason not to participate.

Trustee Posthuma moved to Approve participation in the National Opioid Settlement
Agreement and Authorizing the Village Manager to Execute the Related Participation
Agreements and any other Documents Necessary to Facilitate Participation. Trustee
Fisher seconded the motion.

AYES: Trustees Posthuma, Haarlow, Stifflear, Fisher, Byrnes, Banke
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

Motion carried

Zoning & Public Safety (Chair Stifflear)
Waive competitive bidding and award a contract to Orbis Solutions for the repair of
the Railroad Security Camera System at a cost not to exceed $33,451 (First Reading —
November 16, 2021)
Trustee Stifflear introduced the item explaining the Village has already received IRMA
insurance money for the repair, but must pay back the deductible of $25,000. Orbis Solutions
currently provides our IT services and is familiar with the security system.
Trustee Stifflear moved to Waive competitive bidding and award a contract to Orbis
Solutions for the repair of the Railroad Security Camera System at a cost not to exceed
$33,451. Trustee Banke seconded the motion.

AYES: Trustees Posthuma, Haarlow, Stifflear, Fisher, Byrnes, Banke
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

Motion carried
DISCUSSION ITEMS

Tollway update

Assistant Village Manager/Director of Public Safety Brad Bloom said there is no update at this
time.

Tollway Flooding Event June 26, 2021

Village Manager Gargano reported there has been no further resident communication, and 50%
of the claims are in the process of being settled.
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DEPARTMENT AND STAFF REPORTS

a) Community Development — October & November
b) Engineering

The report(s) listed above were provided to the Board. There were no additional questions
regarding the content of the department and staff reports.

Ms. Gargano thanked the Board for their direction and support, she thanked the engaged
community members for their input, and thanked the talented co-workers she serves with on
behalf of the Board and residents.

REPORTS FROM ADVISORY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
No reports.
CITIZENS’ PETITIONS

None.
TRUSTEE COMMENTS

Trustee Byrnes commented it was a good year for Hinsdale, all things considered. Trustee
Stifflear added that in addition to her professionalism and leadership, Ms. Gargano is ‘in the
trenches’ whenever necessary.

President Cauley wished all a Merry Christmas and Happy New Year.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business before the Board, President Cauley asked for a motion to
adjourn. Trustee Banke moved to adjourn the regularly scheduled meeting of the
Hinsdale Village Board of Trustees of December 14, 2021. Trustee Byrnes seconded the
motion. '

AYES: Trustees Posthuma, Haarlow, Stifflear, Fisher, Byrnes, Banke
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

Motion carried

Meeting adjourned at 8:14 p.m.

ATTEST:
Christine M. Bruton, Village Clerk







Z ViLLAGE OF REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION

Est. 1873 —

for the price increase in the 2023 Budget due to the fact that Units #4 & #5 wouldn’t be received
until 2023. Public Services recommends the purchase of both Units #4 & #5.

Budget Impact

The CY 2022 Budget includes $190,000 for the purchase of Unit #5. The 5-Year CIP includes
$190,000 in 2023 for the purchase of Unit #4. Since delivery of both trucks will not be until 2023,
the Village will update the 2023 CIP to reflect the higher cost. If the Village Board approves the
orders of both trucks, the Village would budget, pay for and receive the vehicles in 2023. The total
cost for both trucks is $440,267.28, which is $60,267.28 over budget.

To help offset the price increase and bring the total cost to the Village closer to the original budgeted
amount, Public Services recommends auctioning off the older replacement trucks in lieu of
accepting the offered trade-ins. Public Services estimates the auction value to be $15,000 per
vehicle. Including the auctioned vehicles, Public Services estimates the total cost for replacing the
two trucks to be $410,000, which is roughly 8% or about $30,000 over planned costs.

. Amount
Planned ($190,000/per truck) | $380,000.00
Peterbilt Quote - Sourcewell $440,267.28
Estimated Auctioned Amount $30,000.00
Total Cost* $410,267.28*

*The costs of the réplacement vehicles will be included in CY2023 CIP Budget. There is no
budget overage impact to the CY2022 Budget.

Village Board and/or Committee Action
N/A

Documents Attached
1. Peterbilt Quote
2. Sourcewell Agreement #060920-PMC
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Peterbiltlllinois-Joliet (P128)
535 East S. Frontage Rd
Bolingbrook, lllinois 60440

Tor Larkin

Cell Phone:

Office Phone: 630-972-2720
Email: tlarkin@jxe.com

Stock

Stock Order

Vehicle Summary

Unit Chassis
Model: Model 548  Fr Axle Load (Ibs): 20000
Type: Full Truck  Rr Axle Load (Ibs): 23000
Description 1: Hindsdale G.C.W. (Ibs): 43000
Description 2 Single axle
Application Road Condilions:
Intended Serv.: Snowplow  Class A (Highway) 100
Comimodity: Other Commodity Class B (Hwy/Mtn) 0
Class C (Off-Hwy) 0
Body Class D (Off-Road) 0
Type: End Dump  Maximum Grade: 6
Length (ft): 24 Wheelbase (in): 172
Height (ft); 13.5 Owerhang (in): 60
Max Laden Weight 1000 Fr Axle to BOC (in): 69.5
(Ibs):
Cab to Axle (in): 102.5
Trailer Cab to EOF (in); 162.5
No. of Trailer Axles: 0 Owrall Comb. Length (in): 272
Type:
Length (ft): 0 Special Req.
Height (ft): 0
Kingpin Insel (in): 0
Comer Radius (in): 0
Restrictions
Length (ft): 40
Width (in): 102
Height (fi): 13.5
Approved by: Date:

Note: All sales are F.0.B. designated plant of manufacture.

Price lLevel: April 1, 2021
Deal: Hindsdale
Printed O 12/20/2021 9:25:38 AM

100% Complete

Date: December 20, 2021

Quote Number: QUO-886624-Y3J7X5
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“Sales Std/

_Code -~ Opt De;qriptiorr.r - . S o SList 'W?igm
Base Model
0005481 S Model 548 108,586 10,860
0091200 S Other Commodity 0 0
0093150 o Showplow 0 0
Truck which is configured for mounting a snowplow to the front.May
also have dump or other body.
0095170 O End Dump 0 0
0098170 S United States Registry 0 0

Canadian Registry PackageRequires Air Conditioning Excise Tax
Canada, Speedometer to be KPH ipo MPH, Daytime Running Lights
and Rubber Battery Pad in Bottom of Battery Box.

Configuration

0200700 S Not Applicable 0 0
Secondary Manufacturer

Frame & Equipment

0514000 0] 10-3/4" Steel Rails To 354" 240 261
10.75x3.5x.375 Dimension, 2,136,000 RBM; Yield Strength: 120,000
psi. Section Modulus: 17.8 cubic inches. Weight: 1.74 tbs/inch pair

0611300 8 Heavy Duty 5-Piece Crossmember BOC IPO Standard 0 20
Class 5, 6, 7
0611330 0 Zinc Coated Anti Corrosion Treated Frame Rails 362 2

Requires Frame Rail Code. Zinc Phosphate coating will replace the
slandard frame rail primer-and provde added corrosion prevention for
your customer’s operating in severe condiiions or in climates where
wehicle rust is common.

0811790 S Aluminum Frame Rail Crossmembers 0 0
Excludes suspension

0612230 0 Custom Wheelbase or Overhang 350 6
Engineering approval may be required.

0644080 S EOF Square without Crossmember 0 0

End-of-frame square without crossmember. For use with body builder
installed crossmember.
0651010 S Peterbilt Rear Mudflaps and Straight Hangers 0 ¢
Mudftaps aid in protecting the frame and undercarriage from road sal,
grime and debris that can cause rust and corrosion. Mud flaps also
shield other vehicles from grawel, rocks and road spray.

Front Axle & Equipment

1011890 O PACCAR FX-20 Steer Axle 20,000 Ibs. 4" Drop 1,678 137
Axle is designed for applications with a gross axle weight rating
{GAWR) of 20,000 pounds. Front axle is designed for demanding
applications such as construction, heaw haul, refuse, and other
wocational uses. Robust forged steel beam construction for long-lasting
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performance. 1t utilizes innovative tapered' kingpin roller bearihgs for
more efficient operation and improved steering efficiency.

The PACCAR Steer Axle comes standard with the PACCAR warranty of
5 years, 750,000 miles.

1114030 O Taper Leaf Springs, Shocks 20,000 b 661 110
Standard with Heawy Resistance Shocks.

1243050 O Power Steering Sheppard HD94 Dual 890 80
For use with 16,000 to 20,000 ib. axle ratings.

1250250 @] Power Steering Reservoir Frame Mounted w/Cooler 161 2
A power steering cooler helps reduce the heat of the power steering
fluid. This is commonly used with systems that may experience more
stress from towing or off-road driving.

1354855 0 PHP10 Iron PreSet Hubs-Air Disc 706 25

1380290 0O Bendix Air Disc Front Brakes -84 30
Bendix air disc front brakes use a floating caliper design to provde
foundation braking on all axles and complies with reduced stopping
distance regulations.

1380490 0 PACCAR FX Wide Track IPO Standard 0 15
71in KPIPO 69in front axle for improved turning radius.

Rear Axle & Equipment

1511110 S Meritor RS23-160 23,000 Ib 0 ]
1616370 O PHP10 Iron PreSetHubs 0 0
1680450 0O Rear Brake Camshaft Reinforcement 11 9
Rear brake camshaft reinforcement helps guard against wear and
comosion. -~ 7
1680490 O Gusseted Cam Brackets, Drive Axle(s) 24 2
1680500 S SBM Valve 0 0

Full trucks require a spring brake modulation (SBM) system for
emergency braking application. This system requires an SBM valve
and arelay valve with spring brakes on the rear axles. The SBM wvalve
allows the foot valve to operate the rear axle spring brakes if a failure
exists in the rear air system.

1680950 S Stability System Not Selected Or Not Available 0 0

1682430 S Anti-Lock Braking System (ABS) 4S4M 0 0
ABS-6. Includes air braking system.

1684200 S Synthetic Axle Lubricant All Axles 0 0

Peterbilt heaw duty models include Fuel Efficient Cognis EMGARD
FE75W-90 which provdes customers performance advantages ower
cument synthetic lubricants with reduced gear wear and extended
maintenance intervals, resulting in increased uptime. In addition, the
lubricant provides improved fiuid flow to protect gears in extreme cold
conditions and withstand the stress from high temperatures, extending
component life.
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1687010 S Bendix Air Cam Rear Drum Brakes 16.5x7
Bendix Air Cam Rear Drum Brakes to fit all heaw haul, contruction,
refuse and highway truck and tractor applications. Includes Automatic
Slack Adjusters & Outboard Mounted Brake Drums.

Description .

1706140 O Ratio 6.14 Rear Axle 0 0
1811210 o) Peterbilt Air Trac 23,000 Ib Light Weight 987 110
1920385 O Air Springs, Internal Bumpers 54 0

Air Trac / Air Leaf suspensions

Engine & Equipment

2074407 0 PACCAR PX-9 330@2000 GOV@2200 1000@1200 2,266 0
Productivity (2021 Emissions)

N21350 C121 68....Maximum Accelerator Pedal Ve
N21370 C128 68....Maximum Cruise Speed (P059)
N21460 C132 1400..Max PTO Speed (P046)
N21520 C133 5.....Timer Setting (P030)

N21610 C188 39....Low Ambient Temperature Thre
N21620 C189 G0....Intermediate Ambient Tempera
N21630 G190 80....High Ambient Temperature Thr
N21550 C206 35....Engine Load Threshold (P516)
N21340 C209 120...Hard Maximum Speed Limit (P1
N21510 C225 YES...Enable Idle Shutdown Park Br
N21450 C231 NO....Gear Down Protection (P026)
N21570 C233 NO....Idle Shutdown Manual Overrul
N21440 C234 NO....Engine Protection Shutdown (
N21480 C238 NO....Auto Engine Brake in Cruise
N21470 C238 NO....Cruise Control Auto Resume (
N21430 C333 0.....Reserve Speed Limit Offset (
N21410 C334 0.....Maximuim Cycle Distance (N202
N21690 C382 YES...Enable Hot Ambient Automatic
N21500 C395 0.....Expiration Distance (N209)
N21530 C396 YES...Enable Impending Shutdown Wa
N21540 C397 60....Timer For Impending Shutdown
N21320 C399 120...Standard Maximum Speed Limit
N21400 C400 252,..Reserve Speed Function Reset
N21420 C401 10....Maximum Active Distance (N20
N21330 C402 0.....Expiration Distance (N207)

2091130 S VMUX Electronics Architecture 0 0
2091305 0 Engine ldie Shutdown Timer Enabled 0 0
2091315 0] Enable EIST Ambient Temp Overrute 0 0
2091372 Eff EIST NA Expiration Miles 0 0
2091640 Effective VSL Setting NA 0 0
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2092016 O Typical Operating Speed 62 MPH 0 0
2092032 O Powertrain Optimized for Performance 0 0

Best analysis for wehicles used in wocational applications or with heawy
GCWRs.
2140220 O CARB Engine Idling Compliance DECLINED By 0 0
Dealer/Customer
2140670 O EPA Emission Warranty 0 0
2513060 S PACCAR 160 Amp Alternator, Brushed 0 0
PACCAR 160 AMP alternator, brushed producing 160 Amps at road
speed and 100 Amps at idle.
2522110 S PACCAR 12V Starter, NJA PACCAR MX Engines 0 0
PACCAR 12-wit electrical system, With centralized power distribution
incorporating pfug-in style relays. Circuit protection for seniceability, 12-
wlt light system w/circuit protection circuits number & color coded.
2538030 S 2 PACCAR Premium 12V Starting Batteries 2000 CCA 0 i
Threaded stud type terminal. Stranded copper battery cables are
double aught {00) or larger to reduce resistance.
2621130 o Belt Drivet Variable Speed Fan Clutch PX9 Engine 716 0
PX7/ PX9/LAN/B6.7N. The belt-driven fully variable speed fan drives
communicate directly with the PX3 ECM through the included electronic
controller, managing the fan speed to match the exact amount of
cooling required. The optimized setup creates smoother engagements,
reduces noise and frees up available horsepower. These fan drives are
also maintenance-free. A belt, additional pulleys, idlers, tensioners, and
a drive hub are included to dnive the fan.
2723210 S 18.7 CFM Air Compressor 0 0
N/A X15. Furnished on engine. Teflon lined stainless steel braided
compressor discharge line.
2812210 S VGT Exhaust Brake 0 0
{(Variable Geometry Turbo). Provides approximately 90-100 HP of
retardation and is pait of the turbacharger.
2921110 S PACCAR Fuel/Water Separator Standard Service 0 0
PACCAR Fuel/Water separator standard senice intervals. High
efficiency media protects critical engine components.
2921210 S No Fluid Heat Option for Fuel Filter 0 o
2921320 O 12V Heat for Fuel Fiiter 61 0
Fuel filter heaters help ensure a seamless flow of diesel from the tank to
the combustion chamber, Eliminating any possiblity of moisture
freezing within the fuel filter white simultaneously increasing the fuel
temperature for atomization within the engine.
3114270 S High Efficiency Cooling System 0 0
Cooling module is a combination of steel and aluminum components,
with aluminum connections to maximize performance and cooling
capability. Silicone radiator & heater hoses enhance value, durability, &
reliability. Constant tension band clamps reduce leaks. Chewon Delo
Extended Life Coolant (NOAT) exlends maintenance intervals reducing
Price Level: April 1, 2021 100% Complete Date: December 20, 2021
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B el S L i
maintenance costs. Anti-freeze effective to -30 degrees F helps protect
the engine. Low coolant level sensor wams of low coolant condition to
prevent engine damage. Radiator Size by Model: 579/367 FEPTO
1325 sq in, 567/365/367: 1440 sqin, 365 FEPTO: 1184 sq in, 389/367
HH: 1669 sqin, 348: 1000 sqin, 520: 1242 sq in.
3211140 S (1) Air Cleaner Engine Mounted 0 0
3365270 O Exhaust Single RH Side of Cab 377 29
DPF/SCR right-hand Under Cab.
3381770 @] Curved Tip Standpipe(s) 42 1
3387870 o 24" Ht, 5" Dia Chrome, Clear Coat Standpipe(s) 240 0
Transmission & Equipment
4052110 O Allison 3000 RDS-P Transmission, Gen 5 6,515 459
Rugged Duty Series. Includes Rear Transmission Support except on
MX engines, Mobil Delvac Automatic Transmission Fluid, and Water-Oil
Heat Exchange. Alsoincludes features that monitor the transmission
fluid, filter and clutch condition. Will display percent life remaining for
the transmission fluid, filter and clutches on the shift selector. This
information may be displayed using the Mode and Up and Down
buttons. A wrench icon will also be included to indicate when the
transinission fiuid, filter or clutches need senicing. Suited for wehicles
operating on/off highway andfor requiring PTO operation. Forward
ratios: 1st-3.49, 2nd-1.86, 3rd-1.41, 4th-1,00, 5th-0.75, 6th-0.65.
Rewerse ratios: DR-(5.03),
4210080 S 1710 HD Driveline, 1 Midship Bearing 0 0
4240020 0 Automatic Transmission Oil Cooler 823 13
Vocational Hood Only
4252890 O Allison FuelSense 2.0 Not Desired 0 0
4252940 0 Allison Neutral At Stop 0 0
Neutral at Stop features and benefits: Reduces or eliminates the load
on the engine when wehicle is stopped, can help lower fuel consumption
and C02 emissions, and is inciuded in FuelSense 2.0 Plus and Max
packages only.
4266640 O Alflison 6-Speed Configuration, Close Ratio Gears 0 0
. 3000 Series Transmissions.
4256980 0 Seat Mounted Lever Shifter 1,656 4
4257110 0] LH Mounted Trans PTO Provisions 31 0
Air & Trailer Equipment
4510210 0] Bendix AD-HF EP Air Dryer, Heater 196 -2
Coalescing filter, extended purge. Bendix AD-HF air filters protects the
life of your engine system and components. Prowen PuraGuard oil
coalescing technonigy in the the air dryer catridge. This oil coalescing
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filter ensures the removal of oil and oil aerosols before they can
contaminate the moisture removing desiccant.
4540420 S Nylon Chassis Hose 0 0
4543340 O Aluminum Painted Air Tanks -35 -45

All air tanks are aluminum with painted finish except when Code
4543330 Polish Aluminum Alir Tanks is also selected (then exposed air
tanks outside the frame rails will be polished aluminum). Peterbilt will
determine the optimal size and location of required air tanks. Narratives
requesting a specific air tank size or location will not be accepted for
factory installation, See ECAT to determine number or location of air
tanks inslalled.
4612900 0 AE Connection EOF, 7-Way Socket, Connection EOF 462 15
Strapped to the rail

Tires & Wheels

5064010 0] FF: BR 20ply 315/80R22.5 M870 663 94
Efficiency Rating: Fair
Diameter= 42.8 inches; SLR= 19.9 inches
The Bridgestone MB870 is a high scrub All-Position Radial tire designed
specifically for urban waste collection.

5168400 0] RR: BR 16Ply 11R22.5 M770 1,042 64

5190004 o Code-rear Tire Qty 04 0 0

5210550 0] FF: Accur Stl Armor 28039PK 22.5X9.00 364 80
PHP10-5 Hand Holes

5311020 S RR: Accur St Armor 51455PK 22.5X8.25 0 0
PHP10-5 hand holes.

5390004 O Code-rear Rim Qty 04 0 6

5410280 0] Accuride Black Wheels IPO White 0 0

Fuel Tanks

5584100 O D-Shaped Aluminum 70 Gallon Fuel Tank LH U/C 209 0
Non-slip step LH under cab

5602070 0 Location LH U/C 70 Gallon 0 0

5652890 S DEF Tank Mounted LH BOC 0 0
Models 220 and 520 mounted left hand back-of-cab.

5652980 S DEF To Fuel Ratio Between 1:1 And 2:1 0 0

5655019 S DEF Tank Small, HD 14 Gal 2.1M MD 5.5 Gatl 0 0

Battery Box & Bumper

6010780 O Aluminum Space Saver Battery Box RH BOC 159 -84
Battery access from side
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6030630 0] Aluminum Battery Box Cover 66 4
6040550 S Aftertreatment Aluminum Non-Slip Cab Entry 0 0
Aftertreatment right-hand under cab step. DPF/SCR for diesel engines,
catalyst for natural gas engines. On Models 579 specifying chassis
fairings, the box is asrodynamic.
6121770 0O Steel Bumper Tapered Painted 463 40
Two tow points, painted same color as frame
Cab & Equipment
6510170 O Vocational 109" BBC Alum Cab and Metton Hood with 1,882 15
Stationary grille.
6540160 6] Thermal insulation Package in Cab 67 2
Includes thick, closed-cell foam in floor, spectal mylar-faced foam in
walls and roof structure,
6800180 O Hood Crown - Bright Finish ipo Molded Gray 89 0
The hue may be slightly different in the Molded Gray Hood Crown vs.
Molded Gray Bumper.
6800340 6] Rubber Fender Lips 4" Extra Wide 213 8
6917320 S Seats Inc. Driver Seat 0 0
6927320 S Seats Inc. Passenger Seat 0 0
6930500 O Drivers Armrest - RH Only 28 2
6930800 0] Black Seat Color PO Standard Color 0 0
6939110 S Toolbox Under Passenger Seat 0 11
Non-Suspension Seat A
6939400 S Air Ride Driver 0 0
6939420 6] High Back Driver 8 0
6939470 S Vinyl Driver 0 0
6939510 S Non-Air Ride Passenger 0 0
6939520 O High Back Passenger 8 0
6939570 S Vinyl Passenger 0 0
7000025 O Steering Wheel With Multi-Function 263 4
Includes Peterbiit logo on horn bulton , audio wlume, seek, mute and
mode button on LH pod with cruise control on/off/cancel, set/resume
and accelerate/coast on the right pod.
7001520 S Adjustable Steering Column - Tilt/Telescope 0 0
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7036130 O Interior Grey/Black - Curved Roof 197 0
7210540 S Day Cab Rear Window 0 0

Day cab rear window flush to back of cab.
7210550 S 1-Piece Glass Rear Cab Window Fixed 0 0
7230060 S 1-Piece Curved Windshield 0 0
7230360 S Power Door Locks and Power Window Lifts 0 0
Standard
7322010 S Combo Fresh Air Heater/Air Conditioner 0 0
With radiator mounted condenser, dedicated side window defrosters,
Bi-Level Heater/Defroster Controls, 54,500 BTU/HR, and silicone heater
hoses.
7410040 0 Outside Sunvisor - Stainless Steel 230 4
Not available with 2.1M high roof sleeper.
7510060 0 Aero Rear View Mirror Housing, Bright Finish 173 3
7514010 0] Peterbilt Aero Rear View Mirror, Motorized 109 3
Includes lop mirror with motorized, adjustable dual axis heated glass.
Bottom mirror is an integrated convex surface. Includes black textured
arms with breakaway feature.
7514050 S Look Down Mirror Over Passenger Door 0 0
with Black Housing
7610500 S Alir Horn Mounted Under Cab 0 0
7722120 0 ConcertClass, AM/FM, Weatherhand, 3.5 Aux 331 11
7725710 o] Standard Speaker Package For Cab 50 4
(2) Speakers
7728030 0 Radio Mute When In Reverse 0 0
For automatic or automated transmission
7728040 0 Bluetooth Phone and Audio Requires USB Port 48 0
7728050 0 USB Port 46 0
7851480 S Peterbilt Electric Windshield Wipers 0 0
With Intermittent Feature.
7852020 0 Cab Air Suspension 150 15
7852050 0 Auto Reset Circuit Protection 19 0
Daycab and Sleeper
7900090 0 Triangle Reflector Kit, Ship Loose 18 13
Florescent triangle emergency road flares are designed to meet and
exceed all DOT standards.
7900310 o] Fire Extinguisher, Mounted Outboard Driver Seat 53 9
Hazmat approval UL listed/rated ABC
7901130 0 Backup Alarm (107 DB) 35 3
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8011850 0] 'Transm.ission Oil Temperature (Main“) ‘ - ' — 24 0

Located in Digital Cluster Display.

8021380 S Air Restriction Indicator 0 0
Mounted on air cleaner, intake piping, or firewall

8070860 S Main Instrumentation Panel 0 0

Digital Cluster 7" Display includes: Physical {Analog) - Speedometaer,
Tachometer, Oil Pressure, Coolant Temp and Display Gauges - Fuel
Lewel, DEF Lewl, DPF Filter Status, Fuel Economy, Volts Telltale, OAT
and Primary Air Pressure, Secondary Air Pressure for air brake trucks.

8111110 S Headlights Composite Fender Mounted 0 0
Integral park, tum, and side marker

8120980 S (5) Marker Lights, Aero LED 0 0

8133450 0 (2) Brackets F/O Beacon/Strobe, Roof Mounted 244 4

(2) brackets for furnished by owner beacon / strobe lights roof mounted.
Located abowe each door toward rear, includes switch and wiring.

8134160 S Self-Canceling Turn Signal 0 0

8140080 S LLED Stop/Turn/Tail/Backup 0 -7
Bracket mounted left-hand / right-hand end of frame

8140850 S Moveable EOF Crossmember For Mounting Tail Lights 0 1
Square end of frame with or without end of frame crossmember

Paint

8530770 S (1) Color Axalta Two Stage - Cab/Hood 0 0
Base Coat/Clear Coat
N85020 A- 791801EY JADE MIST GREEN

N85700 BUMPER LOOO1EA  BLACK

N85500 CAB ROOF 791801EY JADE MIST GREEN
N85300 FENDER = 791801EY  JADE MIST GREEN
N85200 FRAME LOGO1EA  BLACK

N85400 HOOD TOP 791801EY  JADE MIST GREEN

Shipping Destination
Options Not Subject To Discount

9400091 S Peterbilt Class 7 Standard Coverage 0 0
1 year/Unlimited Miles/km

9400094 S PACCAR PX-9 Standard Coverage 0 0
2 yrs/250,000 mi (402,336 km)/6,250 hrs

9407103 O Prepaid Freight Increase For 2022 Delivery 500 0

9408703 0] Base Warr: Emissions 5YR/M100K MI-EPA Engine 0 0

Miscellaneous

9409046 0 Vocational Hood (MODEL 548) 0 0

9409063 @] State Registry: lllinois 0 0
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Promotions

Order Comments

Total List Price (W/O Freight & Warranty & $135,125
Surcharges)
Marketing and Service Support Fee $995
Prepaid Freight $2,800
Total Surcharge/Options Not Subject To Discotint $500
Total Weight 12,440

Prices and Specifications Subjectto Change Without Notice.

Unpublished oplions mayrequire reviewfapproval.
Dimensional and performance data for unpublished options mayvary from that displayed in CRM.

PRICING DISCLAIMER
While we make every effort to maintain the web site to preserve pricing accuracy, prices are subject to change
without notice. Although the information in this price list is presented in good faith and believed to be correct at
the time of printing, we make no representations or warranties as to the completeness or accuracy of this
information. We reserve the right to change, delete or otherwise modify the pricing information which is
represented herein without any prior notice. We carefully check pricing specifications, but occasionally errors can
occur, therefore we reserve the right to change such prices without notice. We disclaim all liability for any errors
or omissions in the materials. In no event will we be responsible for any damages of any nature whatsoever from
the reliance upon information from these materials. Please check your order prebills to confirm your pricing
information
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Shipping Destinations
Intermediate Destination: NONE

Final Destinations Quantity
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PLAN COMMISSION APPLICATION

Applicant

Owner

Name: MKLM, LLC

Address: 9819 S. Millard

City/zip: Evergreen Park 60805

Phone/Fax: (%) 442 ,8444

E-Mail: jmcelroy@becknellindustrial.com

Name: Hathaway Equities LLC
Address: 830 S. Buffalo Grove Rd., Suite 106

City/zip: Buffalo Grove 60089
Phone/Fax: (847) 520-7000 /

E-Mail: CPManagement.info@gmail.com

Others, if any, involved in the project (i.e. Architect, Attorney, Engineer)

Name: Cathleen M. Keating

Title: Attorney

Address: 2215 York Road #550

City/zip: ©Oak Brook, lllinois 60523

Phone/Fax: (*%°) 472-3407 ,630-472-0048

E-Mail: CMk@mccslaw.com

Name: GPN

Title: Architect

Address: 399 Lucerne Drive

City/Zip: Spartanburg, SC 29302
Phone/Fax: (204 983-2215 ,864-583-2265
E-Mail: khenay@GPNArchitect.com

Disclosure of Village Personnel: (List the name, address and Village position of any officer or employee
of the Village with an interest in the owner of record, the Applicant or the property that is the subject of this

application, and the nature and extent of that interest)

D

2)

3)




Address of subject property: 777 N. York Road, Unit 21

Property identification number (P.I.N. or tax number): 09 - 01 _ 209 - 007
03-01-209-037, 032

~ i . A 09-01-209-010,011
Brief description of proposed project: physical fitness facility and martial arts studio

General description or characteristics of the site; Gateway Square is a 1-story shopping center

offering restaurants, retail, services and other business uses. 1 building has 25,225 sf; the other building has 13,575 sf. Itis served by 246 parking spaces.

EXIStIn g zZon ' ng an d Ia n d use: B8-1 Zoning District. Land use: shopping centar

Surrounding zoning and existing land uses:

North: B-3 Retail, Office, Service South: R4 Single Family Residence

East: R-4 Single Family Residential West: 0-2 Limited Office and R-4 SFR

Proposed zoning and land use: B-1{unchanged) with Special Use Permit

Please mark the approval(s) you are seeking and attach all applicable applications and
standards for each approval requested:

U Site Plan Approval 11-604  Map and Text Amendments 11-601E
Amendment Requested:

Design Review Permit 11-605E

a

Q Exterior Appearance 11-606E
U Planned Development 11-603E

™!

Special Use Permit 11-602E
Special Use Requested: U Development in the B-2 Central Business

children's maritat arts and fitness facility District Questionnaire




Address of subject property:

777 N. York Rd.

The following table is based on the

B-1 Zoning District.

Minimum Code
Requirements

Proposed/Existing
Development

Minimum Lot Area (s.f.) 6,250 sq. ft. 161,258 sq. .
Minimum Lot Depth 125 feet 275"
Minimum Lot Width 50 feet 437"
Building Height 30 feet 26.5'
Number of Stories 2 2
Front Yard Setback 25' 14.85'
Corner Side Yard Setback 25' n/a
Interior Side Yard Setback 10' 30'/200"
Rear Yard Setback 20" 35'
Maximum Floor Area Ratio
Maximum Total Building
Coverage* n/a n/a
Maximum Total Lot Coverage* 90% no change

Parking Requirements

194-201 spaces required.

(per attached parking
analysis)

Existing 246 spaces

Parking front yard setback 10' 40'
Parking corner side yard

setback n/a n/a
Parking interior side yard 10 10"
setback

Parking rear yard setback 10' no change
Loading Requirements

Accessory Structure o n/a

Information

* Must provide actual square footage number and percentage.

Where any lack of compliance is shown, state the reason and explain the Village’s authority, if any, to approve the

app”cation despite such lack of Compliance: Front yard setback and parking rear yard setback are pre-exisling; no change is being made.




The Applicant certifies and acknowledges and agrees that:

A

SUBSCRIBED AND

e\before me this _§
Uty ¢ )

The statements contained in this application are true and correct to the best of the Applicant's knowledge and
belief. The owner of the subject property, if different from the applicant, states that he or she consents to the filing
of this application and that all information contained in this application is true and correct to the best of his or her

knowledge.

The applicant understands that an incomplete or nonconforming application will not be considered. In addition,
the applicant understands that the Village may require additional information prior to the consideration of this
application which may include, but is not limited to, the following items:

1. Minimum yard and setback dimensions and, where relevant, relation of yard and setback dimensions
to the height, width, and depth of any structure.

2. A vehicular and pedestrian circulation plan showing the location, dimensions, gradient, and number of
all vehicular and pedestrian circulation elements including rights-of-way and streets; driveway
entrances, curbs, and curb cuts; parking spaces, loading spaces, and circulation aisles; sidewalks,
walkways, and pathways; and total lot coverage of all circulation elements divided as between
vehicular and pedestrian ways.

3. All existing and proposed surface and subsurface drainage and retention and detention facilities and
all existing and proposed water, sewer, gas, electric, telephone, and cable communications lines and
easements and all other utility facilities.

Location, size, and arrangement of all outdoor signs and lighting.

Location and height of fences or screen plantings and the type or kink of building materials or
plantings used for fencing or screening.

6. A detailed landscaping plan, showing location, size, and species of all trees, shrubs, and other plant
material. .
7. A traffic study if required by the Village Manager or the Board or Commission hearing the application.

The Applicants shall make the property that is the subject of this application available for inspection by the Village
at reasonable times;

If any information provided in this application changes or becomes incomplete or inapplicable for any reason
following submission of this application, the Applicants shall submit a suppiemental application or other
acceptable written statement containing the new or corrected information as soon as practicable but not less than
ten days following the change, and that failure to do so shall be grounds for denial of the application; and

The Applicant understands that he/she is responsible for all application fees and any other fees, which the Village
assesses under the provisions of Subsection 11-301D of the Village of Hinsdale Zoning Code as amended April

25, 1989.

THE OWNER OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY AND, {F DIFFERENT, THE APPLICANT ARE JOINTLY AND
SEVERALLY LIABLE FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE APPLICABLE APPLICATION FEE. BY SIGNING THE
APPLICATION, THE OWNER HAS AGREED TO PAY SAID FEE, AND TO CONSENT TO THE FILING AND
FORECLOSURE OF A LIEN AGAINST SUBJECT PROPERTY FOR THE FEE PLUS COSTS OF COLLECTION,
IF THE ACCOUNT IS NOT SETTLED WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS AFTER THE MAILING OF A DEMAND FOR

PAYMENT. 19@1'?"

On the lfbl" , day of SE@EMMRE 2021, I/we have readt e above certification, understand it, and agree
to abide by its condmons
; // /‘)/)

/ Signature of appllcant or authorlzed agent Slgnﬁture of apphcant or autbo’rlzed agent
/ !{ ey TNy N %) .
M’/‘e’; P i W (ci_/:?y / 15\,0«:1:3’ { C Ezm'vj
Name of applicant or authorized agent/ Name of applicant or authorized agent 7

aygiacy A ALFANL{

‘ Official Seal .
NotarfPubhc State of|llinofs—

My Comm\ssion Expires Oct 1

Notgﬁi,Eubth \
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE
CERTIFICATION OF PROPER NOTICE

REGARDING APPLICATION FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS AND
MEETINGS

I, Cathleen M. Keating, being first duly sworn on oath, do hereby certify that | caused written
notice of the filing of my application for a public hearing and or meeting to be given to owners of
record of property within 250 feet of any part of the subject property. | further certify that | gave such
notice in the form required by the Village (Certified Mail) and that | gave such notice on

Attached is a list of all of the addresses of property to whom | gave such notice and the
receipts of mailings.

By:

Name: Cathleen M. Keating

Address: 2215 York Road, Suite 550, Oak Brook, lliinois 60523

Subscribed and sworn to before me

This day of , 2021

By:

Notary Public



PARKING ANALYSIS

GATEWAY SQUARE - 777 N. YORK ROAD

USE TOTAL SF CODE REQ. SPACES REQUIRED
Retail / Restaurant 19,016 I space /200 SF 96
#H#1A, 4, 8,10, 17-18,
22,24,25
Services — general
##1B, 7,9, 9A, 13 6,418 | space /250 SF 26
Fitness facilities
##5-6, 21 4,355
Design capacity - ##5-6 50 | space for each 3
#21 30 persons of design
Total 80 capacity 27

Health Service facilities
#11 2,747 1 space/ 175 SF 16

Vacant Spaces
##14, 19,23 7,174 | space/200 (retail) 36

| space/250 (service) 29
TOTAL SPACES REQUIRED*/ 194-201 spaces (depending upon uses of vacant space)
TOTAL SPACES PROVIDED 246 spaces

PARKING OVERAGE 45-52 spaces (depending upon uses of vacant space)

*/ Square footage of each rented space shown is gross SF, not net SF. Actual numbers of required spaces
would be less if calculated based upon net SF.



GATEWAY SQUARE ——— - 777 N. York Road
' SUMMARY OF TENANTS

Restaurant

1A Hinsdale Sandwich Shop, Inc. 2,300
1B ‘ | Design Salon 1,720 Hair Salon
4 Prime 'N Tender Meats 1,340 Butcher Shop
56 Sparkfit dba Air Fitness 2,680 Gym
7 Gateway Cleaners 1,340 Dry Cleaner
Robert J. Wilkemeyer dba Avenue
8 Evewear 1,340 Eyewear and Opticians
9 A.B. Edward Enterprises, Inc. 975 Custom Home Builders
9A Bien Assorti Nail Salon 1,043 Nail Salon
10 European Children's Shoes 703 Retail / Shoes
11 impact Physical Therapy 2,747 Physical Therapy
13 Amazing Leaners dba Kumon 1,340 Math & Reading Center
14 Available 3,955
17,18 |M & W Food dba Hua Ting Restaurant| 2,670 Restaurant
19 Available _ 2,336
21 Available f:// 1,675
22 Garden Berry Café Inc. 3,977 Restaurant
23 Available 883
24 Everfast dba Calico Corners 5,046 Custom Window Treatments
25 Find Gold Mfg. Jewelers 1,640 Jewelry Store
" 39,710
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
19 East Chicago Avenue
Hinsdale, lllinois 60521-3489
630.789.7030

Application for Certificate of Zoning Compliance

You must complete all portions of this application. If you think certain
information is not applicable, then write “N/A.” If you need additional
space, then attach separate sheets to this form.

Applicant’'s name: IJKLM, Inc.

Owner's name (if different): Hathaway Equities LLC
777 N. York Road, Hinsdale, IL 60521 Suite 21

Property address:
Property legal description: [attach to this form]
Present zoning classification: B-1, Community Business District

Square footage of property: 1,675 square feet

Lot area per dwelling: N/A
Lot dimensions: N/A x
Current use of property: Shopping Center (Suite 21 is currently vacant)
Proposed use: L—_]Single-family detached dwelling
[ ]other:
Approval sought: [ Building Permit [] Variation
Special Use Permit [ Planned Development
[]Site Plan [JExterior Appearance
[_] Design Review
[C]Other:

Brief description of request and proposal:
Applicant requests special use permit to aliow a physical fitness facility/martial arts studio.

Plans & Specifications: [submit with this form]
Provided: Required by Code:
Yards:
front: N/A 25'

interior side(s) N/A 10' /10



Provided: Required by Code:

corner side - NA 25

rear N/A 20'
Setbacks (businesses and offices):

front: 25' 15'

interior side(s) 10 / 30" /200'

corner side

rear 20' 35'

others:

Ogden Ave. Center:
York Rd. Center:
Forest Preserve:

Building heights:

principal building(s): 30’ 26.5'
accessory building(s): 15 15'

Maximum Elevations:

principal building(s):
accessory building(s):

Dwelling unit size(s): N/A N/A
Total building coverage:  N/A N/A
Total lot coverage: 90% no change
Floor area ratio: .35 no change

Accessory building(s):
Spacing between buildings: [depict on attached plans]

principal building(s):

accessory building(s):
Number of off-street parking spaces required: _194-201 required; 246 provided.
Number of loading spaces required: N/A

Statement of applicant:

| swear/affirm that the information provided in this form is true and complete. |

understand that any omissien of applicable or relevant information from this form could
be a basis for de-nﬂ r re\g7 /on of the Certificate of Zoning Compliance.

| /YA

By: L[] vz
Applicz/ymt's ignattre i
/

IJKLM, Inc.
Applicant's printed name

Dated: @&% \ 2021 .

-



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
SPECIAL USE PERMIT CRITERIA

TVILLAGE
@F HEN@DALE FOUINDED IN 1873

Must be accompanied by completed Plan Commission Application

Address of proposed request: 777 N. York Road, Suite 21

Proposed Special Use request: 1,675 sq ft fitness facility/martial arts studio

Is this a Special Use for a Planned Development? @ No O Yes (If so this submittal also
requires a completed Planned Development Application)

REVIEW CRITERIA

Section 11-602 of the Hinsdale Zoning Code regulates Special use permits. Standard for Special
Use Permits: In determining whether a proposed special use permit should be granted or denied the
Board of Trustees should be guided by the principle that its power to amend this Code is not an
arbitrary one but one that may be exercised only when the public good demands or requires the
amendment to be made. In considering whether that principle is satisfied in any particular case, the
Plan Commission and Board of Trustees should weigh, among other factors, the below criteria Please
respond to each criterion as it relates to the application. Please use an additional sheet of paper to
respond to questions if needed.

FEES for a Special Use Permit: $1,225 (must be submitted with application)

1. Code and Plan Purposes. The proposed use and development will be in harmony with the
general and specific purposes for which this Code was enacted and for which the regulations
of the district in question were established.

The proposed use, a fitness facility/martial arts studio, will promote health and wellness of
Hinsdale children and adulits.

2. No Undue Adverse Impact. The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or
undue adverse effect upon adjacent property, the character of the area, or the public health,
safety, and general welfare.

The proposed use is compatible with other uses in Gateway Square and is of a size (1,675 sf)
which fits the neighborhood character of the Gateway Square shopping center. It will enhance
public heaith and fitness.




. No Interference with Surrounding Development. The proposed use and development will be
constructed, arranged, and operated so as not to dominate the immediate vicinity or to
interfere with the use and development of neighboring property in accordance with the
applicable district regulations

Both Gateway Square and the surrounding areas are fully developed with a variety of retait,
office, service and residential uses. A small fitness center/martial arts studio will serve the
neighborhood and be convenient for residents to access.

. Adequate Public Facilities. The proposed use and development will be served adequately by
essential public facilities and services such as streets, public utilities, drainage structures,
police and fire protection, refuse disposal, parks, libraries, and schools, or the applicant will
provide adequately for such services.

Gateway Square is a fully developed shopping center with adequate streets, utilities,
drainage, and other public facilities and services.

. No Traffic Congestion. The proposed use and development will not cause undue traffic
congestion nor draw significant amounts of traffic through residential streets.

Students will use the facility from 3:00 to 9:00 p.m., 4 days/week. Only 1 class will be offered at a
time. The capacity of the facility (max of 25 students) will not cause traffic congestion.

. No Destruction of Significant Features. The proposed use and development will not result in
the destruction, loss, or damage of any natural, scenic, or historic feature of significant

importance,
No new exterior construction is being performed. Applicant is only doing interior renovations, per
interior drawings.

. Compliance with Standards. The proposed use and development complies with all additional
standards imposed on it by the particular provision of this Code authorizing such use.

The existing Gateway Square shopping center complies with all zoning standards.

. Special standards for specified special uses. When the district regulations authorizing any
special use in a particular district impose special standards to be met by such use in such

district.
N/A



9. Considerations. In determining whether the applicant's evidence establishes that the foregoing
standards have been met, the Plan Commission shall consider the following:

Public benefit. Whether and to what extent the proposed use and development at the particular
location requested is necessary or desirable to provide a service or a facility that is in the
interest of the public convenience or that will contribute to the general welfare of the
neighborhood or community.

The proposed martial arts studio will provide athletic training and fitness services for Hinsdale
children and adults in an area where these services are not currently provided; these programs
will enhance fitness, weliness and confidence.

Alternate locations. Whether and to what extent such public goals can be met by the location

of the proposed use and development at some other site or in some other area that may be
more appropriate than the proposed site.

Applicant believes this location is the best place in Hinsdale in which to locate this business.

Mitigation of adverse impacts. Whether and to what extent all steps possible have been taken
to minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use and development on the immediate
vicinity through building design, site design, landscaping, and screening.

N/A - no new construction









Hinsdale Premier Martial Arts
Studio Number 1

e Parent engagement
o Parents have the option either to drop off their children at the studio and enjoy the shopping center
(or run errands nearby), or to remain in the studio and observe the class. Our space will have a
designated seating space for parents who choose to stay and observe.

e Hours of operation
o 3:00PM to 9:00PM, four (4) days per week

¢  Goals of the business

o To emphasize quality of performance and skill acquisition as the main requirements for
advancement.

o To focus our curriculum on self-protection and blended martial arts training.

o To provide a workout that burns off more calories than virtually any other activity, while
increasing lean muscle mass

o To provide an exciting class instruction that improves consistency, which is the key to success in
any activity

o To encourage students to learn the self-discipline it takes to lose weight and keep it off

o To provide training in the martial arts that is a fun and exciting part of a student’s life.

¢ Estimated # of employees
o  Total employees in company: 2-3 Full time staff plus 2 owners of the business
o Total employees on site at any one time: 2

Submitted with this letter are photos of actual PMA students and classes. We are excited about bringing Premier
Martial Arts to Hinsdale and look forward to working with you to bring our dream to fruition.

IJKLM, LLC

By:

Kevin McElroy, Manager James McElroy, Manager
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT TO OPERATE A
PHYSICAL FITNESS FACILITY (MARTIAL ARTS STUDIO) IN THE
B-1 COMMUNITY BUSINESS ZONING DISTRICT AT
777 N. YORK ROAD, UNIT 21 (IJKLM, LLC D/B/A PREMIER MARTIAL ARTS)

WHEREAS, an application (the “Application”) seeking a special use permit to
operate a Physical Fitness Facility (Martial Arts Studio) in the Gateway Square Shopping
Center located at 777 N. York Road, Unit 21, Hinsdale, lllinois (the "Subject Property"),
located in the B-1 Community Business Zoning District, was filed with the Village of
Hinsdale by Petitioner IJKLM, LLC, d/b/a Premier Martial Arts, (the “Applicant”); and

WHEREAS, physical fitness facilities are permitted as special uses when located
in the B-1 Community Business Zoning District pursuant to Section 5-105(c)(11) of the
Hinsdale Zoning Code (“Zoning Code”); and

WHEREAS, the Subject Property is legally described in Exhibit A attached hereto
and made a part hereof; and

WHEREAS, the Application has been referred to the Plan Commission of the
Village and has been processed in accordance with the Zoning Code, as amended; and

WHEREAS, on December 8, 2021 the Plan Commission held a public hearing on
the application pursuant to notice thereof properly published in The Hinsdalean, in
accordance with lllinois law, and, after considering all of the testimony and evidence
presented at the public hearing, the Plan Commission recommended approval of the
Application by a vote of six (6) in favor, zero (0) against and three (3) absent, all as set
forth in the Plan Commission’s Findings and Recommendation for Plan Commission Case
No. A-27-2021 (*Findings and Recommendation”), a copy of which is attached hereto as
Exhibit B and made a part hereof; and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village have duly
considered the Findings and Recommendation of the Plan Commission, and all of the
materials, facts and circumstances affecting the Application, and find that the Application
satisfies the standards set forth in Section 11-602 of the Zoning Code relating to special
use permits.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the President and Board of Trustees
of the Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties and State of Illinois, as follows:

Section 1: Incorporation. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this
Section 1 by reference as findings of the President and Board of Trustees;

506696_1 1



Section 2: Adoption of Findings and Recommendation. The President and
Board of Trustees of the Village of Hinsdale approve and adopt the findings and
recommendation of the Plan Commission, a copy of which is attached hereto as
Exhibit B and made a part hereof, and incorporate such findings and recommendation
herein by reference as if fully set forth herein.

Section 3: Approval of Special Use for a Physical Fitness Facility (Martial Arts
Studio). The President and Board of Trustees, acting pursuant to the authority vested in
it by the laws of the State of lllinois and the Zoning Code, hereby approves a special use
permit for a Physical Fitness Facility (Martial Arts Studio) in the B-1 Community Business
Zoning District on the Subject Property legally described in Exhibit A and located at in
the Gateway Square Shopping Center at 777 N. York Road, Unit 21, Hinsdale, lllinois.

Section 4: Violation of Condition or Code. Any violation of any term or condition
stated in this Ordinance or of any applicable code, ordinance, or regulation of the Village
shall be grounds for the immediate rescission by the Board of Trustees of the approvals
made in this Ordinance.

Section 5: Severability and Repeal of Inconsistent Ordinances. Each section,
paragraph, clause and provision of this Ordinance is separable, and if any section,
paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional or invalid
for any reason, the unconstitutionality or invalidity of such section, paragraph, clause or
provision shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance, nor any part thereof, other than
that part affected by such decision. All ordinances, resolutions or orders, or parts thereof,
in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby
repealed.

Section 6: Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from
and after its passage, approval, and publication in the manner provided by law.

506696_1 2



PASSED this day of 2022.

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED by me this day of 2022, and attested
to by the Village Clerk this same day.

Thomas K. Cauley, Jr., Village President

ATTEST:

Christine M. Bruton, Village Clerk

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT BY THE APPLICANT TO THE
CONDITIONS OF THIS ORDINANCE:

By:

Its:

Date , 2022

506696_1 3
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EXHIBIT A

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 38
NORTH, RANGE 11, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF BLOCK 4 OF THE
TOWN OF FULLERSBURG (NOW KNOWN AS HINSDALE); THENCE
SOUTHERLY, ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE OF YORK ROAD
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS CASS STREET), A DISTANCE OF 203.99
FEET, TO AN EXISTING IRON STAKE FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING;
THENCE EASTERLY, THIS LINE HEREAFTER REFERRED TO AS LINE
“A”, ADISTANCE OF 275.90 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF
LOT 23 OF HINSDALE HIGHLANDS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART
OF THE AFORESAID NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 1; THENCE
SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE OF LOTS 23,24 AND
25 OF SAID HINSDALE HIGHLANDS, A DISTANCE OF 478.45 FEET TO
THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 25, ALSO BEING THE
NORTH LINE OF LOT 26 OF SAID HINSDALE HIGHLANDS; THENCE
WESTERLY ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 26 AND ALONG
THE NORTH LINE AND THE WESTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF OF
WALKER'’S FIRST ADDITION TO FULLERSBURG (NOW KNOWN AS
HINSDALE) BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE AFORESAID
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 1, A DISTANCE OF 507.28 FEET TO THE
CENTER LINE OF SAID YORK ROAD; THENCE NORTHERLY, ALONG
THE CENTER LINE OF SAID YORK ROAD, A DISTANCE OF 431.35
FEET TO THE WESTERLY EXTENSION OF LINE “A” AFORESAID;
THENCE EASTERLY, ALONG SAID WESTERLY EXTENSION OF LINE
“A”, A DISTANCE OF 33.02 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;
EXCEPTING THEREFROM, THAT PART OF YORK ROAD (FORMERLY
KNOWN AS CASS STREET) AS PLATTED ON SEVERSON’S
SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE AFORESAID
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 1, LYING WESTERLY OF AND
ADJOINING LOTS 1 AND 2 OF SAID SEVERSON’S SUBDIVISION, IN
DU PAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PINS: 09-01-209-007; 09-01-209-010; 09-01-209-011; 09-01-209-031; 09-
01-209-032

COMMONLY KNOWN AS: GATEWAY SQUARE (777 N. YORK ROAD),
HINSDALE, ILLINOIS



EXHIBIT B
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION

(ATTACHED)
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FINDINGS OF FACT AND RECOMMENDATION
OF THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION
TO THE VILLAGE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES

APPLICATION: Case A-27-2021 — 777 N. York Road, Unit 21 — Special Use Permit to allow for a
Martial Arts Studio (Physical Fitness Facility) for Premier Martial Arts (IJKLM, LLC)
at 777 N. York Road, Unit 21 in the B-1 Community Business District

PROPERTY: 777 N. York Road, Unit 21 (PINs: 09-01-209-007; 09-01-209-010; 09-01-209-011;
09-01-209-031; 09-01-209-032

APPLICANT: [JKLM, LLC

REQUEST: Special Use Permit

PLAN COMMISSION (PC) REVIEW: December 8, 2021
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 15T READING: January 4, 2022

SUMMARY OF REQUEST: The Village of Hinsdale received an application from IJKLM, LLC
requesting approval of a Special Use Permit to allow for the operation of a physical fitness facility
(martial arts studio) at 777 N. York Road, Unit 21 located in the B-1 Community Business District for
Premier Martial Arts. Martial arts studios are classified as physical fitness facilities, which are
considered a Special Use in the B-1 Community Business District.

The tenant space is located in the Gateway Square Shopping Center, which consists of two one-story,
multi-tenant buildings and 246 parking spaces. A gas station / convenience store and an office building
are located to the north of the subject property in the B-3 General Business District. An office buildings
and an animal hospital in the O-2 Limited Office District are located to the south and the west of the
property. Single-family detached homes in the R-4 Single Family Residential District are located to the
south and the east.

The public hearing notice and transcript are attached.

On December 8, 2021, following the conclusion of the public hearing on this matter, the Plan
Commission recommended approval of the Special Use Permit by a vote of six (6) in favor and zero (0)
opposed, with three (3) absent.

PUBLIC HEARING SUMMARY AND FINDINGS: At the public hearing held on December 8, 2021,
Kevin McElroy, representing the applicant IJKLM, LLC, and Cathleen Keating, the attorney for the
applicant, were present at the meeting.

Ms. Keating provided a brief overview of the proposed mixed martial arts studio, Premier Martial Arts.
The proposed use requires approval of a Special use Permit. Ms. Keating stated that the use is
consistent with the mix of uses in the Gateway Square shopping center and there will be no adverse
impacts on adjacent properties.

Ms. Keating also stated that there is ample parking available in the shopping center to support the
current and future tenants. A parking analysis was provided to the Village that indicates there are forty-
five (45) to fifty-two (52) additional parking spaces currently provided above Village code requirement.
The applicant is not proposing any expansion or change to the existing building or site.



Mr. McElroy provided an overview of the business. Premier Martial Arts will offer classes held by
certified professional instructors to both children and adults. Four (4) to five (5) classes will be held a
day. Classes will be held four (4) to six (6) days of the week. The business would be following COVID
procedures required by the State and masks are currently required.

Commissioner Curry asked if there will be protocols for dropping off and picking up children to ensure
children are safely crossing the parking lot. Commissioner Curry stated the dry cleaners in the shopping
center currently has several designated parking spaces for their business and asked if something like
this may be a possibility for the martial arts studio.

Mr. McElroy stated they have not discussed this designated spaces with the landlord, but would be
happy to have a discussion. Mr. McElroy noted that safety for children is a concern and one of the
reasons why the applicant chose this location is due to the safeness of the parking lot.

Ms. Keating stated no child will be allowed to leave the facility unless they are picked up and escorted
by a parent. Mr. McElroy also noted that the tenant space is not directly adjacent to the parking lot, so
people will park and walk through the pedestrian mall. There was a discussion on the tenant space
location in the shopping center.

Commissioner Willobee asked for clarification on the hours and days of operation. It was noted that the
application stated that the business will be open four (4) days, but the applicant verbally stated they will
be open four (4) to six (6) days a week. Mr. McElroy confirmed they plan to be open four (4) days a
week, but did not want to create any confusion if anyone searched for the Premier Martial Arts national
franchise, which normally usually has locations open four (4) to six (6) days a week.

Mr. McElroy stated the hours of operation will depend on the number of students that sign up per class,
but the applicant hopes to be open from 3:00 PM to 9:00 PM. Commissioner Willobee commented that,
with the existing businesses, the proposed timeframe to be open wouid be a favorabie to bring some
activity and people to the shopping center. There was a discussion that this use may bring extra
business to the maill.

There was also a brief discussion on the history of the franchise. Mr. McElroy stated that there is an
existing Premier Martial Arts located in downtown Chicago and another is about to open in Deerfield.

In recommending approval of the Special Use Permit, the Plan Commission determined that the
standards set forth in Section 11-602(E) of the Village's Zoning Code have been met. Overall, the
Commission expressed overall support for the project. The Commission noted during the meeting that
the use would be compatible with the existing uses in the shopping center and the surrounding area
that is currently developed, the proposed hours of operation would bring additional activity to the
shopping center during times where it is currently not as actively used, and the shopping center has
ample parking to accommodate the proposed use.

No members of the public provided comment at the meeting. Staff did not receive comments from any
members of the public prior to the meeting.



A motion to approve the Special Use Permit was made by Commissioner Curry and seconded by
Commissioner Hurley. The vote carried by a roll call vote as follows:

AYES: Commissioners Curry, Hurley, Willobee, Carter, Fiascone and Chairman Cashman
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Commissioners Crnovich, Jablonski, Krillenberger

RECOMMENDATIONS: Based on the findings set forth above, the Village of Hinsdale Plan
Commission, by a vote of six (6) ayes and zero (0) nays, with three (3) absent, recommended to the
President and Board of Trustees approval of Case A-27-2021, a Special Use Permit to allow for a
Martial Arts Studio (Physical Fitness Facility) for Premier Martial Arts (IJKLM, LLC) at 777 N. York
Road, Unit 21 in the B-1 Community Business District, as submitted.

Signed:
Steve Cashman, Chair
Plan Commission
Village of Hinsdale
Date:




VILLAGE OF HINSDALE
NOTICE OF PLAN COMMISSION
PUBLIC HEARING

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN to all persons that the Village of Hinsdale Plan
Commission shall conduct a public hearing on Wednesday, December 8, 2021 at 7:30 p.m. in
the Memorial Building, 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, lllinois for the purpose of considering
an application from [JKLM, LLC for a Special Use Permit to allow for the operation of a physical
fitness facility (martial arts studio) at 777 N. York Road, Unit 21 located in the B-1 Community
Business District. The proposed tenant space is located in the Gateway Square Shopping Center.
This request is known as Case A-27-2021.

Copies of documents relating to the proposed request are on file and available for public
inspection during regular Village business hours in the Memorial Building, 19 East Chicago
Avenue, Hinsdale, lllinois.

The common address is 777 N. York Road, Hinsdale IL, 60521 (PINs: 09-01-209-007; 09-01-
209-010; 09-01-209-011; 09-01-209-031; 09-01-209-032) and legally described as follows:

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11,
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF BLOCK 4 OF THE TOWN OF
FULLERSBURG (NOW KNOWN AS HINSDALE); THENCE SOUTHERLY, ALONG THE
EASTERLY LINE OF YORK ROAD (FORMERLY KNOWN AS CASS STREET), A DISTANCE
OF 203.99 FEET4 TO AN EXISTING IRON STAKE FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE
EASTERLY, THIS LINE HEREAFTER REFERRED TO AS LINE "A", A DISTANCE OF 275.90
FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 23 OF HINSDALE HIGHLANDS, BEING A
SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE AFORESAID NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 1; THENCE
SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE OF LOTS 23, 24 AND 25 OF SAID
HINSDALE HIGHLANDS, A DISTANCE OF 478.45 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF
SAID LOT 25, ALSO BEING THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 26 OF SAID HINSDALE HIGH LANDS;
THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 26 AND ALONG THE NORTH
LINE AND THE WESTERLYEXTENSION THEREOF OF WALKER'S FIRST ADDITION TO
FULLERSBURG (NOW KNOWN AS HINSDALE) BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE
AFORESAID NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 1, A DISTANCE OF 507.28 FEET TO THE
CENTER LINE OF SAID YORK ROAD; THENCE NORTHERLY, ALONG THE CENTER LINE
OF SAID YORK ROAD, A DISTANCE OF 431.35 FEET TO THE WESTERLY EXTENSION OF
LINE "A" AFORESAID; THENCE EASTERLY, ALONG SAID WESTERLY EXTENSION OF LINE
"A", ADISTANCE PF 33.02 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; EXCEPTING THEREFROM,
THAT PART OF YORK ROAD (FORMERLY KNOWN AS CASS STREET) AS PLATTED ON
SEVERSON'S SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE AFORESAID
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 1, LYING WESTERLY OF AND ADJOINING LOTS 1 AND 2 OF
SAID SEVERSON'S SUBDIVISION, IN DU PAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS .

COMMONLY KNOWN AS: GATEWAY SQUARE (777 N. YORK ROAD - HINSDALE, ILLINOIS)

At said public hearing, the Plan Commission shall accept all testimony and evidence pertaining to
said application and shall consider any and all possible zoning actions, including the granting of
any necessary special permits, variations, other special approvals, or amendments to the Zoning
Code that may be necessary or convenient to permit development of the proposed type at the



described property. All interested persons are invited to attend and be heard.

Dated: November 15, 2021

Christine M. Bruton, Village Clerk To be published in the Hinsdalean on November 18, 2021



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
SS:
COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

BEFORE THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION
In the Matter of:
PREMIER MARTIAL ARTS
Special Use, Case

No. A-27-2021
777 North York Road.

e N e N e e

REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and testimony
taken at the hearing of the above-entitled
matter before the Hinsdale Plan Commission, at
19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, I11inois, on

December 8, 2021, at the hour of 7:30 p.m.

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:
MR. STEPHEN CASHMAN, Chairman;
MS. SHELLEY CARTER, Member;
MR. PATRICK HURLEY, Member;
MS. ANNA FIASCONE, Member;
MS. CYNTHIA CURRY, Member; and

MR. MARK WILLOBEE, Member.
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1 ALSO PRESENT: 1 establishments until their children’s classes
2 MS. BETHANY SALMON, Village Planner; 2 areover.
3 We believe this martial arts studio
3 MS. CATHLEEN KEATING, Attorney for 4 will be an excellent addition to Gateway Square,
Applicant; 5 the adjoining neighborhood and the Hinsdale
4
6 business community.
MR. KEVIN McELROQY, Applicant.
5 7 Now my client, Kevin McElroy, will
8 tell you more about what his studio will offer.
6 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Next is public 9 Thank you.
7 hearing Case A-27-2021, 777 North York Road, e 10 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Thank you.
8 Unit 21, a special use permit to allow for a 11 MR. MCELROY: Good ' K
R. Mc ¢ Good evening. I'm Kevin
9 martial arts studio and a physical fitness K
wu-» 10 facility for Premier Martial Arts (IJKLM, LLC) 12 McElroy and I'm going to talk to you about what
11 in the B-1 community business district. 13 Premier Mixed Martial Arts is. We also call it
12 Do we have someone here from the 14 PMA. It's the fastest growing mixed martial
13 applicant?
pplicant 15 arts franchise in the country. It also provides
14 (Ms. Keating and Mr. McElroy )
15 were administered the oath.) 16 the best in class, mixed martial arts for both
16 MS. KEATING: My name is Cathleen 17  children and adults.
17 Keating, I'm the attorney for the applicant. I 18 We will provide certified
18 represent DKLM, LLC, and I'm here with Kevin 19 professional instructors with four to five

19 McElroy, the principal of the LLC, who has )
) ] swww 20 Classes per day, four to six days per week to
anw 20 leased Suite 21 at Gateway Square for mixed

21 martial arts studio. 21 raise fitness levels and improve self-
22 A special use permit is needed for 22 confidence. Rather than focus on one style of
3 5
1 this use. Itis consistent with the mix of uses 1 mixed martial arts, our facility blends four.
2 currently located at Gateway Square and should 2 It will talk about karate, kickboxing, Krav
3 have no adverse impact on adjacent properties. 3 Maga, Brazilian Jiu-Jitsu, and Cali is kind of
4 Gateway Square has more than enough 4 ke the fifth one.
5§ parking to support not only its current tenants 5 Classes require high activity and
6 but also future tenants as was established by 6 high energy which demand focus and raises
7 the parking analysis we provided to the village. 7 fitness levels week over week. If there's two
8 Even if you assume the most intense use from a 8 things that you guys will remember coming out of
9 parking standpoint for all of the space that is 9 this, I would hope it would be one, our motto,
»2« 10 now vacant, the center still has between 45 and anzv 10 which is No kids are left on the bench, everyone
11 52 more spaces than it needs and it's really the 11 plays. And our goal, which is to counter
12 availability of that parking which makes this an 12 bullying at schools and the community, through
13 attractive place to locate for my client. 13 empowering and enriching students' character
14 The small studio is of a scale that 14 development.
15 fits the neighborhood character of Gateway 15 We have two programs, a children's
16 Square. There's no expansion or change to the 16 program which teaches 5 to 12-year olds and it
17  existing buildings or parking spaces. As you 17  will focus on self-discipline, character
18 know, the site is fully developed. 18 development, self-confidence, social
19 The applicant anticipates that 19 responsibility, exercise, respect for authority
svae 200 parents will drop off their children for a class snwev 20 and positive self-image. Children will practice
21 and then either wait for them, observe the class 21 accountability through homework that we will be
22 or shop in the Gateway Square retail 22 giving them and they also will be required to do
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1 services both at home, at school and in the 1 My concern is is children in
2  community. 2 parking lot and between cars and parents. Is
3 We also have an adult class which 3 there any protocol such as a preschool would
4 s for 13-year olds and up. What we do there is 4 have or any other establishment that you need to
5 we focus on fitness, self-defense. We will 5 facilitate and make sure it's safe for kids to
6 promote weight loss, stress relief, increase 6 move in and out?
7 fitness levels and improve self-esteem as well. 7 I know that the dry-cleaners has
8 Adults will see improvement week over week and 8 two to three spaces that are allocated for the
9 will be able to grow a network with like-minded 9 dry-cleaners in Gateway Square. Is that
»»wv 10 adults themselves. .10 something that's a possibility for you to
11 We are currently focused on what 11 actually have designated spots that might be
12 the state is allowing for Covid so we will 12 right along the sidewalk so there isn't a danger
13 monitor everything that Illinois state requires. 13 to kids' safety?
14 Right now mixed martial arts facility is allowed 14 MR. McELROY: It's not something that
15 and masks will be required while they do it 15 we approached the landlord on but it's
16 regardless of vaccination status and we will be 16 definitely something that's ongoing. We are
17 maintaining physical distances as best as we can 17 concerned about the same thing, making sure that
18 to maintain the class. 18 children are safe. It's one of the reasons why
19 Just to close out, our business 19 we actually found this location is its priority
.= 20 goals, IIKLM business goal, are we really would -+ 20 for us because it has a very big parking lot.
21 like to impact the community directly by 21 I think to your point though,
22 improving kids' lives through a proven system of 22 there's conversation with the landlord ongoing
7 9
1 martial arts. This particular franchise and 1 that will hopefully support exactly what you are
2 this system that they have been using is over 2 talking about.
3 30 years old. 3 MS. KEATING: IfI could also add, I'm
4 We also want to provide a local 4 certain that no child will be allowed to leave
5 outlet that will enrich children and adults 5 the facility unless escorted by his or her
6 through physical fitness. I think our biggest 6 parent. So it's not as though you are going to
7 competition right now is maybe TV and video 7 open the door at the end of the class and the
8 games and we are hoping to get kids more active 8 kids are going to run out because they are not
9 and moving again, especially after Covid. We 9 walking home.

. 10 also want to teach discipline and develop a ~ 10 MS. CURRY: That would be probably for
11 community location for like-minded individuals 11 safety sake, they probably would want a parent
12 and children so that they have a place to go and 12 to pick a child up.

13 learn a craft that's been around for centuries. 13 MR. McELROY: Just logistically try and
14 1 thank everybody for my time today. 14 think about this. The location isn't right on
15 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Commissioners, 15 the parking lot, it's actually out back, so
16 questions? 16 there is that ped mall that would guide children
17 Cynthia? 17 with their parents through the ped mall near the
18 MS. CURRY: My question is that your 18 parking lot.
19 studio will be the first of -- your 19 I think you bring up a good point

= 20 establishment will be the only one where there's »a:00 20 though talking about designated spaces and
21  actually a volume of people moving to and from 21 something that we just haven't looked at further
22 the parking facility, dropping off/picking up. 22 because this has been our priority.
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1 MR. HURLEY: Is this the space that's 1 the end of the day so there's not as much
2 like in the northeast corner where the Campus 2 traffic.
3 Colors is? 3 MS. CURRY: It's good it will bring
4 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Yes. 4 business to the mall.
5 MR. MCELROY: Right next to the new 5 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Anna?
6 breakfast restaurant. 6 MS. FIASCONE: No questions for me.
7 MR. HURLEY: Right. You can sort of 7 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Shelley?
8 drop off there too. 8 MS. CARTER: No questions.
9 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Yes, there's a 9 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Where is the
a0 10 pretty straight shot and there's benches in «w» 10 franchise started, where did it begin?
11 there and stuff. My daughter went to dance and 11 MR. McELROY: It started in Knoxville,
12 typically the parent would park and go in. It 12 Tennessee and right now I think there's over 200
13 seems like that's a pretty standard procedure 13 locations nationwide. Chicago is actually
14 unless they are teens. 14 starting to boom a little bit. You will see a
15 MS. KEATING: Right. From a safety 15 lot of them down in Texas, Georgia, Tennessee,
16 perspective, you can't let kids just leave. 16 Kentucky and Utah, actually.
17 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Even if you did, I 17 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Are there other ones
18 don't think parents would let them. We are 18 in the western suburbs?
19 pretty good at helicoptering. 19 MR. McELROY: Not yet. Right now
s 20 MS. KEATING: There may be carpooling »sw« 20 there's only one open and it's downtown,
21 involved but that's all, just carpooling. 21 There's a second one that's about to open up in
22 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Any other questions? 22 Deerfield. And I'm actually going to lunch with
1 13
1 MR. HURLEY: No. 1 the other franchisees on Sunday and there are
2 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Mark? 2 some other western suburbs that are currently
3 MR. WILLOBEE: Your application said 3 planned territory.
4 four days a week. I think you just mentioned 4 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Okay. Any other
5 four to six days a week. I just want some 5 questions?
6 clarification. 6 MR. WILLOBEE: No.
7 MR. MCELROY: Yes. Our planis four 7 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Thank you.
8 days a week. What I didn't want to have happen 8 MS. CURRY: Thank you.
9 is somebody Googling the national franchise and 9 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Commissioners, do I
w0 10 seeing that they run four to six days a week and s2v 10 have a motion to approve Case A-27-2021, 777
11 having that questioned so I wanted to address it 11 North York Road for a special use permit in the
12 here. 12 B-1 community business district?
13 MR. WILLOBEE: Okay. And then hours of 13 MS. CURRY: Motion to approve.
14 operation is that pretty fixed at 3 to 9? 14 MR. HURLEY: Second.
15 MR. MCELROY: It depends on the number 15 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Roll call vote,
16 of students we get per class. We are hoping to 16 please, Bethany.
17 go 3 to 9. If we, obviously, don't have that 17 MS. SALMON: Commissioner Curry?
18 many students, it will be shortened, but 3 to 9 18 MS. CURRY: Aye.
19 would be the designated hours. 19 MS. SALMON: Commissioner Hurley?
w20 MR. WILLOBEE: Then I just think with ressene 20 MR. HURLEY: Aye.
21 the existing uses that's kind of a favorable 21 MS. SALMON: Commissioner Willobee?
22 time because that mall is kind of dead towards 22 MR. WILLOBEE: Aye.
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14 16
1 MS. SALMON: Commissioner Fiascone? STATE OF ILLINOIS )
2 MS. FIASCONE: Ave. ) ss:
COUNTY OF DU PAGE )
3 MS. SALMON: Commissioner Carter?
4 MS. CARTER: Ave. I, KATHLEEN W. BONO, Certified
5 MS. SALMON: Chairman Cashman? Shorthand Reporter, Notary Public in and for the
6 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Aye. County DuPage, State of Illinois, do hereby
7 Thank you and good luck. Welcome certify that previous to the commencement of the
8 to town. e>.<amination ajd testimony of the various
witnesses herein, they were duly sworn by me to
9 Is there a motion to close the testify the truth in relation to the matters
s 10 public hearing? pertaining hereto; that the testimony given by
11 MR. WILLOBEE: So moved. said witnesses was reduced to writing by means
12 MS. CURRY: Second. of shorthand and thereafter transcribed into
13 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Roll call vote, typewritten form; and that the foregoing is a
14 please. true, correct and complete transcript of my
shorthand notes so taken aforesaid.
15 MS. SALMON: Commissioner Curry? IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF I have
16 MS. CURRY: Aye. hereunto set my hand and affix my electronic
17 MS. SALMON: Commissioner Hurley? signature this 21st day of December, A.D. 2021.
18 MR. HURLEY: Aye. 7@%./ w@@}g
19 MS. SALMON: Commissioner Willobee?
KATHLEEN W. BONO
20 MR. WILLOBEE: Aye. C.S.R. No. 84-1423
21 MS. SALMON: Commissioner Fiascone? Notary Public, DuPage County
22 MS. FIASCONE: Aye.
15
1 MS. SALMON: Commissioner Carter?
2 MS. CARTER: Aye.
3 MS. SALMON: Chairman Cashman?
4 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Aye. Thanks.
5 (WHICH, were all of the
6 proceedings had, evidence
7 offered or received in the
8 above entitled cause.)
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
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11-1-10: FINAL PLAT REQUIREMENTS:

The final plat, as submitted to the Plan Commission, shall be in strict accordance with approved
tentative plat and shall be drawn on tracing cloth or other approved materials to a scale of not less than
one hundred feet to the inch (1" = 100"). Three (3) white prints of the final plat shall accompany the
original tracing. The final plat shall show or otherwise satisfy the following requirements:

A. Allitems listed in Section 11-1-7 hereof, as required for the tentative plat, except such of said
items specifically waived by the Plan Commission.

B. Certificate of licensed surveyor or engineer that property has been surveyed and the plat
submitted is a correct presentation of the property as it is proposed to be divided or subdivided or
dedicated and date of said certificate.

C. Certificate of owner or owners in a form satisfactory to the Plan Commission.

D. Proper certificates to provide for the approving signatures of the proper officers of the Plan
Commission and the Village Board and for recording or registering signatures of the proper officials of
DuPage or Cook Counties.

E. That all streets have been named in conformance with existing naming plan of the Village or other
adjoining roads or streets where possible.

F. All lot lines shall be shown and all lots and blocks shall be numbered by progressive numbers.

G. Easements of any nature shall be shown and designated by measurements as to width and
length.

H. Sufficient dimensions, both linear and angular, in accordance with standard surveying practice
shall be shown, so as to permit retracement of any part of the subdivision in the future without difficulty
including curve data and coordinates of boundary corners. Linear measurements shall be in feet and
decimals thereof, and angular measurements in degrees and minutes. All curved lines in the
subdivision shall have fixed radii which shall be indicated thereon and all starting and ending points of
curved lines shall be suitably designated on the plat.

|.  Evidence that suitable monuments, consisting of Portland cement concrete four and one-half
inches by four and one-half inches by forty two inches (45" x 4'/;" x 42") or approved equal have been
installed at the direction of the enforcing officer. Iron pipes or monuments are required at block corners,
at changes in direction of exterior boundaries, at angle points in street lines exclusive of block corners
and such other points as the enforcing officer may direct. Iron pipe stakes shall not be less than three-
quarters inch (*4") in diameter and thirty inches (30") long and shall be installed at all corners and the
beginning and ending of each fixed radius curve except where larger stakes are required as above. The
use of wooden stakes to mark any of the above named points shall not be permitted. The surveyor or
engineer shall indicate on the plat by suitable symbol the location and nature of all stakes or
monuments in place.

J. That provision has been made for direct street or alley connections with existing public streets and
alleys in adjacent and abutting areas or subdivisions that if extended would intersect this subdivision,
unless specifically waived by the Plan Commission.

K. The owner's certificate specified in subsection C above shall contain a statement of dedication
properly conveying for public use all streets, alleys, school sites, parks, playgrounds, easements or
other public purpose.

L. Any other certificates, seals and signatures or dates not enumerated herein as required by law.

M. Legal description of property.



11-1-11: SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS WITH FINAL PLAT:

The final plat shall be accompanied by the following supporting documents, except that the Plan
Commission may, in its own discretion, waive submission of such of the supporting documents or parts
thereof which it deems unnecessary at that time for final approval or which are not pertinent to a
particular subdivision: (2-3-76)

A. A general grading plan of the entire subdivision by means of finished grade contours of one foot
(1) intervals. (2-3-76; amd. 3-17-92)

B. Profiles showing existing ground levels and proposed top of finished surface along the center line
of all streets and alleys within the subdivision.

C. A statement signed by the subdivider setting forth in detail the public improvements he agrees to
construct at his own expense in the subdivision or adjacent thereto, together with plans and
specifications for same, prepared by a civil engineer licensed in the State of Illinois.

D. A statement by the enforcing officer certifying that the improvements proposed by the subdivider
in items A, B and C noted above meet the minimum requirements of this Chapter and all applicable
regulations of the Village.

E. Cash deposited in escrow with the Village by the subdivider in an amount equal to the estimated
cost of the public improvements as prepared by the engineer referred to in C above.

F. An affidavit certifying that the name or names of the person or persons of said subdivision are the
true, lawful and sole owners of all the land included in the subdivision. When such an affidavit appears
on the final plat in a form satisfactory to the Plan Commission, the provisions of this subsection may be
waived.

G. Certificate evidence on the final plat evidencing that all real estate taxes and special
assessments currently due on all the property within the subdivision have been paid. (2-3-76)

H. A storm water management permit application including developments security and long term
maintenance agreements. (3-17-92)



Section 3-110: Bulk, Space, And Yard Requirements:

Exceptions and explanatory notes:

2. Exception For Through Lots: Any through lot that:
(a) Is alot of record;
(b) Was platted prior to October 4, 1995;

(c) Was created by a plat or deed recorded at a time when the creation of a lot of such size,
shape, depth, and width at such location would not have been prohibited by any ordinance
or other regulation;

(d) Is the only through lot that is a lot of record within the block in which it is located;

(e) Is capable of being subdivided into two (2) lots, each containing not less than 87.5 percent of
the required lot area for the zoning district in which it is located and each having a lot width
and depth no less than those required pursuant to subsections 10-105A2(b) and A2(c) of this
code;

(f) Is capable of being subdivided without creating any new, or increasing any existing,
nonconformity with respect to any building located on such through lot; and

(g) !s not capable of being subdivided in conformance with all of the requirements of this code;

may nevertheless be subdivided, but only into two (2) lots of substantially equal area. Each of the
resulting lots shall be deemed to be a legal nonconforming lot of record subject to the requirements
of section 10-105 of this code regarding nonconforming lots.



VILLAGE OF HINSDALE
ORDINANCE NO. 02020-25

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A TENTATIVE PLAT OF SUBDIVISION
(820 N. County Line Road)

WHEREAS, John Stock Ii, attorney on behalf of State Bank of Countryside Trust
06-2865 (the “Applicant”), property owner of 820 N. County Line Road, Hinsdale, (llinojs
(the “Property”), filed an application seeking approval for g tentative plat of subdivision
of the Property in a manner that will allow development of g second residence on the
Property, as shown on the Tentative Plat of Subdivision entitled “820 N. County Line
Road Subdivision” attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit A (“Plat of
Subdivision”). The Property is a through ot located in the R-4 Single Family Zoning

SECTION 1: Recitals. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this
Ordinance by this reference as findings of the President and Board of Trustees.

SECTION 2: Tentative Plat of Subdivision Approval. The Board of Trustees,
acting pursuant to the authority vested in jt by the laws of the State of Illinois and
Section 11-1-8 of the Village Code of the Village of Hinsdale, approves and accepts the
attached Tentative Plat of Subdivision, incorporated into this Ordinance as Exhibit A

453406 _1



thereof, in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict
hereby repealed.

SECTION 4: Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from
and after its passage, approval, and publication in the manner provided by law.

ADOPTED this _20th day of  october , 2020, pursuant to a
roll call vote as follows:

AYES: Trustees Posthuma, Stifflear, Hughes, Haarlow, Byrnes

NAYS: None

ABSENT: Trustee BAnke

APPROVED by me this _20th day of _ October , 2020, and
attested to by the Village Clerk this same day.

oo Coud__
Tho%K Cauley, Jr., Villgeg® President

Chrlstlne M. Bruton, Vlllage Clerk
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EXHIBIT A

APPROVED TENTATIVE PLAT OF SUBDIVISION
(ATTACHED)
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TABLE OF COMPLIANCE

Address of proposed request: 820 North County Line Road

The following table is based onthe ___ R4 as amended per 3-110i(2) Zoning District.

Minimum Code | Existing Proposed
Requirements Development Development
Lot Area 8750 sf 17,684.53 sf 8,842.53 sf
Lot Depth 100° 267.95 133.98
Lot Width 50’ 66’ 66’
Building Height 30 Existing Existing
Number of Stories 3 LESS THAN 3 LESS THAN 3
Front Yard Setback Block average |34.3’ 34.3

Corner Side Yard Setback

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Interior Side Yard Setback

6)

6.2’

6.2'

Rear Yard Setback 25’ 180" + 47.35"
Maximum Floor Area Ratio | Lot area x25% |17,684.53x24% | 8,842.53 x 25% +
(F.AR.)* + 1100 sf + 1200 = 1100 sf =3,310.63
5444 29 sf st max; 20200
max; 2,020.0 | existing
existing
Maximum Total Building Lot area x 25% | 2,020.0 sf 2,020.0 sf
Coverage* (11.42 %) (22.84 %)
Maximum Total Lot Lot area x 60% |3,256.0 sf 3,256.0 sf
Coverage* (18.41%) (36.82%)
Parking Requirements 2 off street 2+ 2+
Parking front yard setback Block average |34.3’ 34.3

Parking corner side yard
setback

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Parking interior side yard 1.0’ 8 +/- \
setback ’ , | 775

Parking rear yard setback = | 1.0’ 150" + 18.4'
Loading Requirements Not applicable | Not applicable | Not applicable
Accessory Structure | Lot areax 10% {448.0 sf 448.0 sf
Information (2.53%) (5.07%)

* Must provide actual square footage number and percentage.

Where any lack of compliance is shown, state the reason and explain the Village's authority, if any, to
approve the application despite such lack of compliance:

UPDATED: 07/07/20

Attachment 1




- Address of proposed request:

8™* Jefferson Road (exact address vet to be assigned)

The following table is based on the

R4 as amended ner 3-1.101(2)

Minimum Code | Proposed
Requirements Development
(empty lot)
Lot Area 8750 sf 8.842.02 sf -
Lot Depth 100’ 133.97°
Lot Width : 50 66’
Building Height - 30’ 30’
Number of Stories 3 3
Front Yard Setback Block average 36.96
Corner Side Yard Setback Not applicable [ Nof applicable
[nterior Side Yard Setback |6’ 7.6 '
Rear Yard Setback 25’ 25' ,
Maximum Floor Area Ratio | Lot area x 25% 8,842.02 x 25% +
(F. AR + 1100 sf 1100 sf =3,310.51

sf max

Maximum Total Building

Lot area x 25%

2,210.51 sf max

Coverage* ,

Maximum Total Lot | Lotarea x60% |5,305.21 sf max
Coverage*

Parking Requirements 2 off street 2 off street
Parking front yard setback | Block average | 26.96°

Parking corner side yard
setback

Not applicable

Not applicable

Parking interior side vard 1.0’ 1.0°
setback
Parking rear yard setback 1.0’ 1.0

L oading Requirements

Not applicable

Not applicable

Accessory Structure
Information

Lot area x 10%

884.20 sf max

Where any lack of compliance is shown, state the reason and e
approve the application despite such lack of compliance:

Zoning District.

xplain the Village's authority, if any, to

UPDATED: 08/12/20

Attachment 1






II. SITE INFORMATION

Address of subject property: 820 N. County line Rd., Hinsdale, illinois 60521

Property identification number (P.I.N. or tax number); 08 - 01 _ 213 - Dos

Brief description of prOPOSed project: subdivide 1 through lot into 2 equali lots with Ihe residence lot facing County line Road and the back vacant lot

facing Jefferson Street.

General description or characteristics of the site: single family residence with adjoining vacant lot - (last remaining

through lot in that block and immediate area)

Existing zoning and land use: R-4

Surrounding zoning and existing land uses:

North: R-4 South: R4

East; R4 West: R4

Proposed zoning and land use: R-4 residential

Please mark the approval(s) you are seeking and attach all applicable applications and
standards for each approval requested:

Site Plan Approval 11-604 U Map and Text Amendments 11-601E
Amendment Requested:

U Design Review Permit 11-605E

U Exterior Appearance 11-606E
Q Planned Development 11-603E
U Special Use Permit 11-602E
Special Use Requested: U Development in the B-2 Central Business
District Questionnaire







TABLE OF COMPLIANCE

Address of proposed request: 820 North County Line Road

The following table is based onthe R4 as amended

Zoning District.

Minimum Code | Existing Proposed
Requirements Development Development
Lot Area 8750 sf 17,684.53 sf 8,842.,53 sf
Lot Depth 100’ 267.95' 133.98’
Lot Width 50’ 66’ 66'
Building Height 30’ Existing Existing
Number of Stories 3 LESS THAN 3 LESS THAN 3
Front Yard Setback Block average |34.3' : 34.3'
Corner Side Yard Setback Not applicable | Not applicable | Not applicable
Interior Side Yard Setback |6’ 6.2’ 6.2'
Rear Yard Setback 25’ 180" + 47.35"
Maximum Floor Area Ratio | Lot area x 25% 17,684.53x24% | 8,842.53 x 25% +
(F.A.R)* + 1100 sf + 1200 = 1100 sf =3,310.63
044429 sf sf max; 20200
max; 2,020.0 - | existing
existing
Maximum Total Building Lot area x 25% | 2,020.0 sf 2,020.0 sf
Coverage* (11.42 %) (22.84 %)
Maximum Total Lot Lot area x60% |3,256.0 sf 3,256.0 sf
Coverage* (18.41%) (36.92%)
Parking Requirements 2 off street 2+ 2+
Parking front yard setback Block average |34.3' 34.3'
Parking corner side yard Not applicable | Not applicable | Not applicable
setback
Parking interior side yard 1.0’ 8' +/- ' ,
setback | 775
Parking rear yard setback 1.0’ 160" + | 18.4%
Loading Requirements Not applicable | Not applicable | Not applicable
Accessory Structure {Lotareax 10% |44B0 sf 448.0 sf
Information (2.53%) (5.07%)

* Must provide actual square footage number and percentage.

Where any lack of compliance is shown, state the reason and explain the Village’s authority,

approve the application despite such lack of compliance:

UPDATED: 08/13 /2021

Attachment 1

if any, to



+ Address of proposed request:

8** Jefferson Road (exact address vet to be assigned)

The following table is based on the

R4 as amended per 3-1.101(2)

Minimum Code [Proposed
Requirements Development
(empty lot)

Lot Area 8750 sf 8,842.02 sf-

Lot Depth 100’ 133.97°

Lot Width 50’ 66’

Building Height 30’ 30

Number of Stories 3 3

Front Yard Sethack Block average 36.96'

Corner Side Yard Setback Not applicable [ Not applicable

Interior Side Yard Setback g’ 7.6

Rear Yard Setback 25’ 25'

Maximum Floor Area Ratio | Lot area x 25% |8,842.02 x 25% +

(FAR) + 1100 sf 1100 sf =3,310.51

sf max

Maximum Total Building
Coverage*

Lot area x 25%

2,210.51 sf max

Maximum Total Lot
Coverage*

.| Lot area x 60%

5,305.21 sf max

Parking Requirements

2 off street

2 off street

Parking front yard setback

Block average

36.96°

Parking corner side yard
sethack

Not applicable

Not applicable

Parking interior side yard 1.0’ 1.0’
sethack
Parking rear yard setback 1.0' 1.0'

Loading Requirements

Not applicable

Not applicable

Accessory Structure
Information

Lot area x 10%

884.20 sf max

Zoning District,

Where any lack of compliance is shown, state the reason and explain the Village's authority, if any, to
approve the application despite such lack of compliance; .
' UPDATED: 08/73/ 2021

Attachment 1



VILLAGE OF HINSDALE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
19 East Chicago Avenue
Hinsdale, lllinois 60521-3489
630.789.7030

Application for Certificate of Zoning Compliance

You must complete all portions of this application. If you think certain
information is not applicable, then write “N/A.” If you need additional
space, then attach separate sheets to this form.

Applicant’'s name: Juanita Durkin
Owner’s name (if different): State Bank of Countryside Trust 06-2865
Property address: 820 N. County Line Road, Hinsdale IL 60521

Property legal description: [attach to this form] Plat
Present zoning classification: R-4, Single Family Residential

Square footage of property: 17,684.70

Lot area per dwelling: 17,684.70

Lot dimensions: 268 x 66

Current use of property: Residential - Single Family Home
Proposed use: Single-family detached dwelling

[V]Other:  subdivide existing thru lot into 2 legal

conformirig 1ols

Approval sought: [J Building Permit L] Variation
L] Special Use Permit (] Planned Development
V] Site Plan L] Exterior Appearance
[J Design Review
[JOther:

Brief description of request and proposal:

subdivide above lot into 2 legal conforming lots; ot fronting on County Line to keep existing residence;
lot facing Jefferson to remain vacant until sold

Plans & Specifications: [submit with this form]
Provided: Required by Code:
Yards:
front: 34.3' 35

interior side(s) 8 /8 10 710



Provided: Required by Code:

corner side ' n/a
rear 25' 25'

Setbacks (businesses and offices): N/A
front:
interior side(s) Y A A
corner side
rear
others:
Ogden Ave. Center:
York Rd. Center:
Forest Preserve:

Building heights: N/A

principal building(s):
accessory building(s):

Maximum Elevations: N/A

principal building(s):
accessory building(s):

Dwelling unit size(s): 1577.71 5444.328

Total building coverage: 2027.26 5444.328
Total lot coverage: 17684.7 50%
Floor area ratio: 0.1146 up to 25%
Accessory building(s): 1 garage - 449.95 sq.ft.
Spacing between buildings:[depict on attached plans]
principal building(s): 8' 10’
accessory building(s): 8 10'

Number of off-street parking spaces required: 2
Number of loading spaces required: n/a

Statement of applicant:
I swear/affirm that the information provided in this form is true and complete. |

understand that any omission of applicable or relevant information from this form could
be a basis for denial or revocation of the Certificate of Zoning Compliance.

Juanita Durkin by hay ova_ el

Applicant's printed name

Dated: S@G}w&bﬁw 7203 .

2



CARRADUS LAND SURVEY

191 S. GARY AVENUE, SUITE 180 CAROL STREAM, IL 60188
Phone: (630) 588-0416 Fax: (630) 653-7682
carradus_survey@yahoo.com

August 11,2021

Stock, Carlson and Duff

124C South County Farm Road
Wheaton, IL 60187

Att: John Stock, Esq.

RE: 820 N. County Line Road, Hinsdale, IL
Dear Mr. Stock,

In reference to our conversations, please note the following summary of the documents this
office has prepared for the submittal thus far.

The Final Plat of Subdivision was prepared in coordination with the reviews of the Village
Planner with the last revision date being 09/02/20. The table of Compliance for both proposed
lots has also been prepared in coordination with comments from the Village Planner with the last
revision dates being 08/12/20 for the Jefferson Road lot, and 07/07/20 for the County Line Road
lot.

Additionally, a letter dated 08/12/20 was provided that indicated the front setbacks of the
existing residences on Jefferson to obtain the average setback of 36.96’.

We have included an itemized summary of the actions we have taken in reference to the
provisions of Sections 11-1-9, 11-1-10, 11-1-11, and 11-1-16 of Chapter 1 of the Subdivision
Regulations.

Should you need anything further please let me know.

Sincerely,

Atk Capadics

Allen D. Carradus



CARRADUS LAND SURVEY

191 S. GARY AVENUE, SUITE 180 CAROL STREAM, IL 60188
Phone: (630) 588-0416 Fax: (630) 653-7682
carradus_survey@yahoo.com

August 11, 2021

SUMMARY

SECTION 11-1-9, FINAL PLATS

The final Plat has been prepared and submitted with the last revision date being 09/02/20.

SECTION 11-1-10, FINAL PLAT REQUIREMENTS

A.

e

= o

—

Items of Section 11-1-7 have been shown except those related to the site development of
the proposed lots since one of the two lots is developed currently and the proposed new
lot is serviced by existing utilities. Specific utilitics and grading will be submitted for
approval when a residence to be built is selected for the new lot.

Surveyors Certificate is included on the face of the Plat.

Owners Certificate is included on the face of the Plat.

The additional certificates have been included on the face of the Plat.

Does not apply.

Provided on the Plat.

None requested at this time.

Provided on the Plat., This is a resubdivision of an existing recorded Plat.

The existing and proposed lot corners are currently monumented with regulatory iron
pipes, thus disturbance of existing monumentation is unwarranted.

Both lots have street frontage.




K. Included in the certificate.

L.

Provided as required.

M. Legal description of the property is shown on the face of the plat.

SECTION 11-1-11, SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS WITH FINAL PLAT

A.

B.

Not provided. This will be provided at building permit application for approval.
Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Does not apply to Carradus Land Survey, to be provided by others.

Does not apply to Carradus Land Survey, to be provided by others.

. Certificate appears on the face of the Plat.

Not provided. This will be provided at building permit application for approval.

SECTION 11-1-16, APPROVAL OF FINAL SUBDIVISION PLATS

A Mylar of the Final Plat of Subdivision will be provided for signatures and recording.




CARRADUS LAND SURVEY

191 S. GARY AVENUE, SUITE 180 CAROL STREAM, IL 60188
Phone: (630) 588-0416 Fax: (630) 653-7682
carradus_survey@yahoo.com

September 22, 2021

Stock, Carlson and Duff

124C South County Farm Road

Wheaton, IL 60187

Att: John Stock, Esq.

RE: 820 N. County Line Road, Hinsdale, IL

Dear Mr. Stock,

Enclosed please find the Final Plat of Subdivision with changes, per the review dated August 19,
2021. We have made all the revisions requested to the Final Plat of Subdivision, including

adding certificates and easements with the easement language.

Also, please find the responses to the Final Plat requirements in the format requested with
expanded explanation as needed.

It trust this will meet with the Villages approval to permit this project to move forward.
Should you need anything further please let me know.

Sincerely,

Allen D. Carradus
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT OF SUBDIVISION
(820 N. COUNTY LINE ROAD)

WHEREAS, John Stock Ill, attorney, and Juanita Durkin, on behalf of State Bank
of Countryside Trust 06-2865 (the “Applicant”), property owner of 820 N. County Line
Road, Hinsdale, lllinois (the “Property”), filed an application seeking approval for a plat
of subdivision of the Property in a manner that will allow sale of a part of the existing lot
and development of a second residence on the Property, as shown on the Final Plat of
Subdivision entitled “820 N. County Line Road Subdivision” attached hereto and made a
part hereof as Exhibit A (“Plat of Subdivision”). The Property is a through lot located in
the R-4 Single Family Zoning District; and

WHEREAS, the Village of Hinsdale Plan Commission, at its December 8, 2021
meeting, considered all of the matters related to the Final Plat of Subdivision, and has
recommended approval by the Board of Trustees on a unanimous vote of six (6) in favor
and zero (0) opposed, with three (3) absent. The Plan Commission waived, subject to
its discretion and at the request of the Applicant, the requirements in Section 11-1-11
(Supporting Documents with Final Plat) of the Village Code as either inapplicable, to be
provided at a later time, or to be provided other than on the Plat itself; and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Hinsdale,
having reviewed the Final Plat of Subdivision for the Property and having found it to be
in conformity with the subdivision and other ordinances of the Village, find that approval
of the Final Plat of Subdivision, with the requested waivers, will be in the best interests
of the Village of Hinsdale.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees
of the Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties and State of lllinois, as follows:

SECTION 1: Recitals. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this
Ordinance by this reference as findings of the President and Board of Trustees.

SECTION 2: Final Piat of Subdivision Approval. The Board of Trustees, acting
pursuant to the authority vested in it by the laws of the State of lllinois and Title 11
(Subdivision Regulations) of the Village Code of the Village of Hinsdale, approves and
accepts the attached Final Plat of Subdivision, incorporated into this Ordinance as
Exhibit A.

SECTION 3: Severability and Repeal of Inconsistent Ordinances. Each section,
paragraph, clause and provision of this Ordinance is separable, and if any section,
paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional or invalid
for any reason, the unconstitutionality or invalidity of such section, paragraph, clause or
provision shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance, nor any part thereof, other
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than that part affected by such decision. All ordinances, resolutions or orders, or parts
thereof, in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict
hereby repealed.

SECTION 4: Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from
and after its passage, approval, and publication in the manner provided by law.

ADOPTED this day of , 2022, pursuant to a
roll call vote as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED by me this day of , 2022, and
attested to by the Village Clerk this same day.

Thomas K. Cauley, Jr., Village President

ATTEST:

Christine M. Bruton, Village Clerk

508062_1 2



EXHIBIT A

APPROVED FINAL PLAT OF SUBDIVISION
(ATTACHED)
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AGENDA ITEM # 2[1/

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION
Finance

VILLAGE OF

BEar. 1873

AGENDA SECTION: Consent — ACA

SUBJECT: Accounts Payable-Warrant #1751
MEETING DATE: January 4, 2022
FrRom: Andrea Lamberg, Finance Director O\

Recommended Motion

Approve payment of the accounts payable for the period of December 9, 2021 through
December 30, 2021 in the aggregate amount of $768,518.26 as set forth on the list provided by
the Village Treasurer, of which a permanent copy is on file with the Village Clerk.

Background
At each Village Board meeting the Village Treasurer submits a warrant register that lists bills

to be paid and to ratify any wire transfers that have been made since the last Village Board
meeting. Supporting materials for all bills to be paid are reviewed by Village Treasurer and
one Village Trustee prior to the Village Board meeting.

Discussion & Recommendation
After completion of the review by the Village Treasurer and Village Trustee approval of
Warrant #1751 is recommended.

Budget Impact
N/A

Village Board and/or Committee Action
Village Board agenda policy provides that the Approval of the Accounts Payable should be
listed on the Consent Agenda

Documents Attached
1. Warrant Register #1751
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE WARRANT REGISTER #1751

FOR PERIOD December 7, 2021 through December 30, 2021

The attached Warranf Summary by Fund and Warrant Register listing TOTAL
DISBURSEMENTS FOR ALL FUNDS of $768,518.26 reviewed and approved by the below
named officials.

APPROVED BY ?/W{/LW\ /fWW ___DATE I‘Z[ZZZZ D)

VILEAGE TREASUR@{FINANCE DI#CTOR
J

APPROVED BY DATE
VILLAGE MANAGER

APPROVED BY DATE
VILLAGE TRUSTEE




Village of Hinsdale
#1751
Summary By Fund

L& S
336,641.53

"~ 336.641.53

General Fund 100 -

2019 GO Bond Fund 309 475.00 475.00

Capital Project Fund 400 57,286.46 - 57,286.46

Water & Sewer Operations . 600 32,080.61 - 32,080.61

Water & Sewer Capital 620 366.10 - 366.10

Escrow Funds 720 13,000.00 - 13,000.00

SSA #13 Debt Service Fund| 725 1,225.00

Payroll Revolving Fund 740 30,413.17 298,242.64 328,655.81

Library Operating Fund 900 12.75 - 12.75
Total 471,500.62 298,242.64 768,518.26




Village of Hinsdale
Schedule of Bank Wire Transfers and ACH Payments
1751

Electronic Federal Tax Payment Systems

12/10/2021 Village Payroll #25 - Calendar 2021 FWH/FICA/Medicare $ 100,266.11
12/13/21 Adjusted Run Village Payroll #25 - Calendar 2021 FWH/FICA/Medicare $ 69.62
12/23/2021 Village Payroll #26 - Calendar 2021 FWH/FICA/Medicare - $ 99,859.96
Illinois Department of Revenue

12/10/2021 Village Payroll #25 - Calendar 2021 State Tax Withholding $ 20,908.48
12/13/21 Adjusted Run Village Payroll #25 - Calendar 2021 State Tax Withholding $ 22.52
12/23/2021 Village Payroll #26 - Calendar 2021 State Tax Withholding $ 20,288.90
ICMA - 457 Plans

12/10/2021 Village Payroll #25 - Calendar 2021 Employee Withholding $ 19,781.87
12/23/2001 : Village Payroll #26 - Calendar 2021 Employee Withholding : $ 34,295.18
HSA PLAN CONTRIBUTION

12/10/2021 Village Payroll #25 - Calendar 2021 Employer/Employee Withholding $  1,375.00
12/23/2021 Village Payroll #26 - Calendar 2021 Employer/Employee Withholding $  1,375.00
Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative Employee Insurance $ -
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund Employer/Employee $ -

Total Bank Wire Transfers and ACH Payments $ 298,242.64



Page Number 1 of 19
Warrant Register 1751

Invoice Description Invoice/Amount

AFLAC-FLEXONE

14695 Payroll Run 1 - Warrant PR2125 795.51
Check Date 12/10/2021 Total For Check # 111385 795.51

COLONIAL LIFE PROCCESSING

14691 Payroll Run 1 - Warrant PR2125 92.36
Check Date 12/10/2021 Total For Check # 111386 92.36

ILLINOIS FRATERNAL ORDER

14693 Payroll Run 1 - Warrant PR2125 912.00
Check Date 12/10/2021 Total For Check # 111387 912.00

NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOL

14694 Payroll Run 1 - Warrant PR2125 200.00
Check Date 12/10/2021 Total For Check # 111388 200.00

NATIONWIDE TRUST CO FSB

14696 Payroll Run 1 - Warrant PR2125 3,464.92
Check Date 12/10/2021 Total For Check # 111389 3,464.92

NCPERS GRP LIFE INS#3105

14692 Payroll Run 1 - Warrant PR2125 224.00
Check Date 12/10/2021 Total For Check # 111390 224.00

STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT

14697 Payroll Run 1 - Warrant PR2125 230.77
Check Date 12/10/2021 Total For Check # 111391 230.77

AT&T MOBILITY

287305163654- PHONE CHARGES 10/26-11/25 210.75

NOV21

287305163654- PHONE CHARGES 10/26-11/25 84.30

NOV21

287305163654~ PHONE CHARGES 10/26-11/25 42,15

NOV21

287305163654~ PHONE CHARGES 10/26-11/25 73.83

NOV21

287305163654~ PHONE CHARGES 10/26-11/25 210.75

NOV21

287305163654 PHONE CHARGES 10/26-11/25 84.30

NOV21

287305163654- PHONE CHARGES 10/26-11/25 168.60

NOV21

287305163654- PHONE CHARGES 10/26-11/25 84.30

NOV21

287305163654- PHONE CHARGES 10/26-11/25 ' -492.78

NOV21



Page Number 2 of 19
Warrant Register 1751

Invoice Description | Invoice/Amount
Check Date 12/20/2021 Total For Check # 111392 466.20
BMO HARRIS BANK N.A. PYMT
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 -4.48
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 -30.54
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 288.00
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 49.90
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 14.00
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 12.99
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 32.26
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 73.71
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 38.97
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 . 90.00
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 70.10
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 189.12
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 49.90
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 124.75
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 36.00
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 36.99
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 3.28
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 0.99
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 : 59.54
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 47.05
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 142.00°
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 485.56
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 7.99
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 0.99
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 15.00
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 15.96
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 38.99
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 102.00
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 40.60
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 106.90
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 92.50
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 29.06
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 ‘ 31.95
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 109.98
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 49.98

NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 36.88



Page Number 3 of 19
Warrant Register 1751

Invoice - Description Invoice/Amount

NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 139.15
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 79.15
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 ' 108.45
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 13.18
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 -11.98
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 66.95
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 15.75
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 154.40
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 88.77
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 63.13
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 365.00
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 289.00
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 84.82
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 382.37
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 ’ -+ 21.69
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 181.49
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 84.85
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 140.00
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 72.08
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 34.00
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 0.99
NOV2021 MISC CHARGES NOV2021 50.00
NOV2021 | MISC CHARGES NOV2021 25.00
Check Date 12/20/2021 Total For Check # 111393 4,937.11
COMCAST
8771201110036757 VILLAGE HALL-12/5/21-1/4/22 258.35
8771201110036815 WATER 12/5/21-1/4/22 148.35
8771201110036807 KLM 12/5/21-1/4/22 108.35
8771201110036781 POLICE 12/56/21-1/4/22 162.90
8771201110009242 FIRE/PD 12/16/21-1/15/22 69.99
8771201110009242 FIRE/PD 12/16/21-1/15/22 70.00
Check Date 12/20/2021 Total For Check # 111394 817.94
A BLOCK MARKETING INC
LC00053055 WOOD CHIP DISPOSAL 30.00
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111395 30.00
ABT
1123121KDAI STOVE REPAIR 174.00

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111396 174.00
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Warrant Register 1751
Invoice Description Invoice/Amount
ADVENTIST HINSDALE HOSP
019 ELECTRICITY - OAK BRIDGE CAMERA 07/01/21- 310.42
12/15/21
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111397 310.42
AEP ENERGY
3013129837-NOV21 2 E N STOUGH/STREE LIGHTING 10/20-11/18/21 7,219.33
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111398 7,219.33
AIR ONE EQUIPMENT
175412 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 479.00
175359P BUNKER GEAR 2,438.00
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111399 2,917.00
ALLETTO, FRANK J
1 WINTER WONDERLAND ENTERTAINMENT 500.00
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111400 500.00
AMALGAMATED BK OF CHICAGO
TRUST TAX ESCROW FEE-12/1/21-11/30/22 750.00
#1855067006
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111401 750.00
AMALGAMATED BK OF CHICAGO
TRUST 2022 AGENT FEE SERIES 2018B-12/1/21-11/30/22 475.00
#1855066007 ‘
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111402 475.00
AMALGAMATED BK OF CHICAGO
TRUST 2022 AGENT FEE 12/1/21-11/30/22 475.00
#1857165003
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111403 475.00
AMERICAN BACKFLOW INC
41985 RPZ IRRIGATION VH-FRONT LAWN 540.95
41984 RPZ REPAIR-OLD HINSDALE HUMANE BLDG 965.95
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111404 1,506.90
AMERICAN EXPRESS
NOV21 MISC CHARGES NOV21 280.00
NOV21 MISC CHARGES NOV21 1,297.50
NOV21 MISC CHARGES NOV21 41.38
NOV21 MISC CHARGES NOV21 1,588.50
NOV21 MISC CHARGES NOV21 935.74

NOV21 MISC CHARGES NOV21 87.25



Warrant Register 1751

Invoice Description

NOV21 MISC CHARGES NOV21
NOV21 MISC CHARGES NOV21
NOvV21 .~ MISC CHARGES NOV21
NOv21 MISC CHARGES NOV21

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111405
ANDRES MEDICAL BILLING LT

253576 NOV COLLECTIONS

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111406
AT&T
63032338639258 VEECK PARK-WP 11/14-12/13/21

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111407
BEACON SSI INCORPORATED '

98733 ANNUAL GAS TANK INSPECTION
98732 OSFM GAS TANK CERTIFICATE

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111408
BRAVO SERVICES, INC

83 OCT21 CLEANING SVC
83 OCT21 CLEANING SVC
83 OCT21 CLEANING SVC
83 OCT21 CLEANING SVC
83 OCT21 CLEANING SVC
83 OCT21 CLEANING SVC

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111409
BUTTREY RENTAL SERVICE IN

308176 GRINDER FOR SIDEWALK REPAIR
307438 COMPRESSOR-PARKS
308164 COMPRESSOR-PARKS

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111410
CCP INDUSTRIES INC

IN02884016 HEAVY RAIN GEAR
IN02884016 HEAVY RAIN GEAR
IN02884016 HEAVY RAIN GEAR
IN02884016 HEAVY RAIN GEAR

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111411
CHICAGO PARTS & SOUND LLC
2-0000897 NEW CUPHOLDER - CHIEFS CAR

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111412

Page Number 5 of 19

Invoice/Amount

48.53
79.00
225.00
-5.67
4,577.23

2,311.64
2,311.64

460.76
460.76

250.00
272.50
522.50

2,250.00
300.00
200.00
650.00

1,200.00

1,250.00

5,850.00

265.00
265.22
151.66
681.88

72.26
72.26
72.26
72.29
289.07

37.45
37.45
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Invoice Description Invoice/Amount

CHICAGO TENTINC

179655359-FINAL  TENT RENTAL-FINAL PAYMENT 470.00
PAYM
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111413 470.00
CINTAS CORPORATION 769
5086865003 EYE WASH STATION PUB SVCS 266.30
4104107127 MAT & TIOWEL SVC ' 22.85
4104107127 MAT & TIOWEL SVC 27.42
4104107127 MAT & TIOWEL SVC 21.39
4104107127 MAT & TIOWEL SVC 12.15
4104107127 MAT & TIOWEL SVC 46.08
4104107127 MAT & TIOWEL SVC 42.97
5086865049 EYE WASH STATION SERVICE 513.65
5086865008 EYE WASH INSPECTION 266.30
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111414 1,219.11
CLEANSWEEP
PS421038 STREET SWEEPING 922.30
ps400562 STREET SWEEPING 115.00
PS414940 STREET SWEEPING FULL TOWN SWEEP #2 9,042.30
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111415 10,079.60
COLLEY ELEVATOR COMPANY
217912 ELEVATOR INSPECTION 593.00
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111416 593.00
CONSERVFS
6410474 GRASS SEED/EROSION MATTING 687.20
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111417 687.20
CORE & MAIN LP
P886877 ANNUAL FIRE HYDRANT REPLACEMENT 14,169.50
Q003553 REPAIR MATERIALS 1,839.60
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111418 16,009.10
CRITICAL REACH
1951 CRITICAL REACH ACCESS FOR 2022 330.00
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111419 330.00

CYLINDERS INC

10905 EMERG REPAIR TO DUMP CYLINDER #21 2,496.90
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111420 2,496.90



Warrant Register 1751

Invoice Description
DEETER, DAN
12084 AMER STORMWATER TRNG-J LODEWYCK

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111421
DLT SOLUTIONS, LLC
5019893 ANNUAL AUTOCAD USER FEE
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111422
DUPAGE COUNTY
IDDE FY21_HO01 OUTFALL MONITORING SVC-STMWR/PERMIT ILR40
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111423
DUPAGE MAYORS & MANAGERS
11257A CONF CBM BREAKFAST 2021
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111424

ETP LABS, INC
21-52597 VEECK OVERFLOW SAMPLE
21-135505 MONTHLY BACTERIA SAMPLES
21-135563 OCT21 MONTHLY BACTERIA SAMPLES
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111425
FACTORY MOTOR PARTS CO
61-542940 FRONT BRAKE PADS #846
60-309629 BRAKE PADS/ROTORS #846
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111426
FEDEX
7-575-84986 FED EXP SHIPPING
7-575-84986 FED EXP SHIPPING
7-590-92863 FED EXP SHIPPING

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111427
FIELD SERVICES INC
8261 REMOVAL OF DUMP CYLINDER UNIT 21

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111428
FIRE SAFETY CONSULTANTS

2021-1447 INSPECTION 110 E OGDEN
2021-1123 INSPECTION-120 N OAK
2021-1765 INSPECTION-306 W FOURTH

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111429
FULLERS HOME & HARDWARE

NOV21 MISC HARDWARE NOV21

Page Number 7 of 19

Invoice/Amount

350.00
350.00

811.80
811.80

41.55
41.55

80.00
80.00

130.00
240.00
240.00
610.00

69.58
470.28
539.86

64.35
17.23
29.49
111.07

1,283.10
1,283.10

715.00
520.00
1,030.00
2,265.00

5.39
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NOV21 MISC HARDWARE NOV21 6.74

NOV21 MISC HARDWARE NOV21 18.52

NOV21 MISC HARDWARE NOV21 5.93

NOV21 MISC HARDWARE NOV21 11.28

NOV21 : MISC HARDWARE NOV21 8.37

NOv21 MISC HARDWARE NOV21 13.47

NOV21 MISC HARDWARE NOV21 10.06
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111430 79.76

FULLERS SERVICE CENTERIN '

70452617797 REPAIR TIRE #326 35.00

11/30/21 CAR WASH- 11/01-11/30 128.00
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111431 163.00

GALLS

4873440 BAGDE 115.00
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111432 115.00

GATEWAY SRA

DEC21 GATEWAY SPECIAL REC DUES-APPROVED 2-5-13 38,703.24
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111433 38,703.24

GLI SERVICES, INC

1ST PAYMENT 18T PYMT IRMAT BUTLER LOT PROJ VOB 10/5/21 13,374.00

- Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111434 13,374.00

GOVTEMPS USA, LLC

3861020 HOWARD HOURS 11/21, 11/28 5,292.00
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111435 5,292.00

GRAINGER, INC. ‘

9143104637 CONTROL BOX FOR POOL LIGHTS 94.87

9146269411 CONTROL BOXES FOR POOL LIGHTS 189.74

9123597198 RETURNED CARTRIDGE FOR KLM -135.24
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111436 149.37

GRANICUS

144849 SOFTWARE LIVESTREAM 1,260.75
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111437 1,260.75

HEALY ASPHALT COMPANY LLC

30277 COLD PATCH | 698.60
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111438 698.60

HR GREEN INC

148511 LAKE MICHIGAN WATER ALLOCATION SVCS 150.25
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147971 PAY #2-2021 CHGO RESURFACTING OBSER-BOT 34,228.50
8/10/21
148762 PAY #2-CHARLESTON RD DRAINAGE VM AUTH 9/1/21 1,178.92
148527 PAY #3-2021 CHGO RESURFACE OBSERV-BOT 11,212.50
8/10/21

147969 . CHARLESTON RD DRAINAGE STUDY 2,060.25

148763 LAKE MICHIGAN WATER ALLOCATION SVC 127.50
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111439 48,957.92

HUGHES ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING INC

111 CSO CERTIFIED OPERATOR/VEECK NOV21 400.00
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111440 400.00

IL ASSOC OF PARK DISTRICT

DUES2022 YEARLY MEMBERSHIP DUES 663.56
(/:heck Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111441 663.56

INDUSTRIAL ELECTRIC SUPPLY

$100008794.001 STREET LIGHT BULBS & PPE GLOVES 127.12

$100008794.001 STREET LIGHT BULBS & PPE GLOVES 7.74

$100008876.001 EMERGENCY LIGHTING-KLM 59.56

$100009190.001  PARTS FOR POOL FENCE 54.37

$100008877.001 EXTERIOR LAMP BULB 9.49

$100008701.001 YOUTH CENTER EXIT FIXTURE ‘ 16.04
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111442 274.32

INDUSTRIAL ELECTRIC SUPPLY '

$100009233.001 REPLACE PHOTO EYES VILLAGE HALL 54.01
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111443 54.01

INTERNATIONAL EXTERMINATO

12-2037 DEC21 PEST CONTROL SVC } 47.00

12-2037 DEC21 PEST CONTROL SVC 47.00

12-2037 DEC21 PEST CONTROL SVC . 132.00

12-2037 DEC21 PEST CONTROL SVC 47.00

12-2037 DEC21 PEST CONTROL SVC 47.00

: Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111444 . 320.00

INTERSTATE BATTERY SYSTEM

10074286 BATTERY #851 109.95

10074234 BATTERIES-#844 109.95
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111445 219.90

IRMA

SALES0019646 OCTOBER DEDUCTIBLE | 279.00
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SALES0019662 2020 CLOSED CLAIMS OCTOBER ' 12,259.48

SALES0019533 2021 CLOSED CLAIMS OCTOBER 25,000.00
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111446 37,538.48

J & L ENGRAVING

2957 PASSPORT TAGS : 23.25
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111447 23.25

J NARDULLI CONCRETE

PAYMENT #5 2021 8TH ST RECONSTRUCT 2,248.90

PAYMENT #5 2021 8TH ST RECONSTRUCT 366.10
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111448 2,615.00

JAMART ENTERPRISES INC

1609 MAIN BREAK SPOIL REMOVAL 6,700.00
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111449 6,700.00

JAMES J BENES & ASSOC INC '

PAY #5 PROJ THE LANE DRAINAGE STUDY 3,197.54

1617.000

PAYMENT #8 2021 3RD PARTY REVIEWS 6,600.00

PAY #6 PROJ THE LANE DRAINAGE STUDY BOT 4/5/21 2,474.85

1617.000

PAYMENT #9 FY 2021 1 3RD PARTY REVIEWS 6,000.00
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111450 18,272.39

LITTLE MEDICAL SCHOOL CHICAGO WEST

HPDO0O01 LITTLE PEDIATRICIAN SCHOOL 690.00
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111451 - 690.00

JLD CONSULTING GROUP

12123 NOV21 CONSULTING FEE 5,500.00
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111452 5,500.00

JUST IN TIME POOL & SPA SERVICE

15879 REPLACE 1 OF 2 DIVE & KIDDIE POOL HEATERS 7,900.00
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111453 7,900.00

KELLER HEARTT CO INC

0393755-IN HYDRAULIC OIL AW32 284.00

0393755-IN HYDRAULIC OIL AW32 450.00

0393755-IN HYDRAULIC OIL AW32 355.00

0393755-IN HYDRAULIC OIL AW32 283.00

0393755-IN HYDRAULIC OIL AW32 117.80

0393757-IN ENGINE OIL 5W20 360.00

0393757-IN ENGINE OIL 5W20 292.00



Warrant Register 1751

Invoice Description
0393757-IN ENGINE OIL 5W20
0393757-IN ENGINE OIL 5W20
0393757-IN ENGINE OIL 5W20
0393757-IN ENGINE OIL 5W20
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111454
KRAMER FOODS
02031629 SUPPLIES/PIZZA & BREAKFAST W SANTA

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111455
LANGUAGE IN ACTION INC
OCT2021 OCTOBER CLASSES
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111456
LINCHPIN SEO '

16354 KLM SEO MARKETING JAN 2022

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111457
LINDE GAS & EQUIPMENT INC
67296770 POOL CHEMICALS
66701095 POOL CHEMICALS

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111458
LITHOPRINT, INC
44992 2020 PD ANNUAL REPORT

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111459
LORKIEWICZ, REBECCA
OCT21 OCTOBER SESSION 2

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111460
LUSE ENVIRONMENT SERVICES INC
979214 POLICE & FIRE BOILER ROOM-ASBESTOR
979214 POLICE & FIRE BOILER ROOM-ASBESTOR

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111461
MACON COUNTY LAW ENFORCEMENT
21-682 ACADEMY

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111462
MANGANIELLO, JIM
DEC21 DEC21 METER READINGS

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111463
MCFARLANE DOUGLASS & CO
330603 2021 HOLIDAY LIGHTING CONTRACT-BOT 9/21/21
331617 2021 HOLIDAY LIGHTING CONTRACT-BOT 9/21/21

Page Number 11 of 19

Invoice/Amount

90.00
68.00
123.25
113.00
2,536.05

119.92
119.92

60.00
60.00

400.00
400.00

133.08
128.83
261.91

364.38
364.38

262.50
262.50

3,650.00
3,800.00
7,450.00

12,828.00
12,828.00

50.00
50.00

10,997.50
1,512.00
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Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111464

MENARDS

87079 PARTS FOR SEWER INSTALL

86523 COFFEE

86736 WELL HOUSE REPAIRS

88204 ANTIMICROBIA CLEANER

88205 BATTERIES

87081 STRING LIGHTS FOR WREATHS |

87783 WOOD FOR WINTER WONDERLAND EVENT

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111465
METROPOLITAN MAYORS CAUCUS
2021-135 FY20/21 CAUCUS DUES

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111466
MIDWEST PAVING EQUIPMENT INC
2164 HOT BOX TUNE UP

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111467
MIDWEST TIME RECORDER

182140 PUB SVC TIME CLOCK NOV21

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111468
MORRISON ASSOCIATES LTD
2021:0501 PROF DEVEL SVC-ZIEMER

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111469
NAPA AUTO PARTS

4343-754760 BRAKE CLEANER
4343-754611 OIL FILTERS/OIL FILTER WRENCH
4343-753922 DRIVE AXLE #127

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111470
NELS J JOHNSON TREE EXPT
1329232 TREE PRUNING PER CONTRACT #1655

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111471
AHEARN, JOANNA
240884 WITHDREW FROM 5 STAR SOCCER CAMP

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111472
ATUESTA, PATRICIA '
24894 KLM SECURITY DEP-EN211212 #2489%4

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111473

Page Number 12 of 19
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12,509.50

29.61
19.17
154.23
149.40
23.94
127.68
34.91
538.94

756.72
756.72

516.83
516.83

96.85
96.85

350.00
350.00

33.48
34.88
92.01
160.37

2,319.00
2,319.00

110.00
110.00

425.00
425.00
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Description

CONIN CONTRACTOR SERVICES INC

METER #26200445 DEPOSIT/WATER USED
METER #26200445 DEPOSIT/WATER USED

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111474

FULLER, LAWRENCE

26102

ST MGMT-23 E 59TH ST #26102
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111475

JOHN NERI CONSTRUCTION

METER #83079289 DEPOSIT/WATER USED
METER #83079289 DEPOSIT/WATER USED

MALAY HOMES, INC

26101

MCCOY, MARY
240906

MCCOY, MARY
240905

MILDICE, AMBRE
25976

MOHNS, BEN
240898

MORELLI, LOUIS
15508

SANTI, AMY
24888

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111476

CONT BD-23 E 59TH ST #26101
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111477

WITHDREW FROM WINTER WONDERLAND
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111478

WITHDREW FROM WINTER WONDERLAND
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111479

KLM SECURITY DEP-EN211204 #25976
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111480

WITHDREW FROM WINTER WONDERLAND
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111481

8TH ST RECONSTRUCT DAMAGED SPRINKLER SYS
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111482

KLM SECURITY DEP-EN211127 #24888
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111483

VISU-SEWER OF ILLINOIS LLC

METER #77817254 DEPOSIT/WATER USED
METER #77817254 DEPOSIT/WATER USED

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111484

Invoice/Amount

2,000.00
-610.50
1,389.50

3,000.00
3,000.00

2,000.00
-1,658.25
341.75

10,000.00
10,000.00

15.00
15.00

30.00
30.00

250.00
250.00

75.00
75.00

685.00
685.00

250.00
250.00

2,000.00
-957.00
1,043.00
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XU, SUSAN / ‘

240885 WITHDREW FROM 5 STAR SOCCER CAMP 110.00
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111485 110.00

ORBIS SOLUTIONS

5571966 EMERGENCY STAND-BY 600.00
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111486 600.00

" PENTEGRA SYSTEMS

63855 LICENSE RENEWAL- 07/01/2021-06/30/ 2022 2,979.81
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111487 2,979.81

PLAQUES PLUS

G1117-66 BENCH DONATION PLAQUE 112.80
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111488 112.80

PROMOS 911 INC

9869 PROMO STUFF 1,195.32
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111489 1,195.32

QUADIENT INC

16553740 INK CARTRIDGE 1S3-4 POSTAGE MACHINE 139.73
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111490 139.73

RAINBOW FARMS ENTERPRISES

72825 LEAF HAULING 1,300.00

72900 LEAF HAULING 1,300.00
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111491 , 2,600.00

RAY O'HERRON CO INC

2158239-IN UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 149.50

2161240-IN UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 119.98

2161725-IN UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 519.98

2158737-IN UNIFORM ALLOWANCE ' 158.50

2159799-IN UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 23398

2159754-IN UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 260.00

2160110-IN UNIFORM ALLOWANCE : 201.13

2158241-IN UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 228.84

2156565-IN UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 35.98

2141577-IN UNIFORM 80.00

2147364-IN AMMO 1,019.40

2155193-IN PATCHES - UNIFORM 27.99

2155189-IN PATCHES-UNIFORM 30.98
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Invoice Description

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111492
RED WING BUSINESS ADVANTA

20211210019991 UNIFORM ALLOW-BOOTS
20211210019991 UNIFORM ALLOW-BOOTS
20211210019991 UNIFORM ALLOW-BOOTS
20211210019991 UNIFORM ALLOW-BOOTS '
20211210019991 UNIFORM ALLOW-BOOTS
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111493
RYAN AND RYAN

100521 LEGAL SERVICES 5/10-10/5/21
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111494

SEMMER LANDSCAPE

23057 MOVING & LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE VOB 3/2/21

23057 MOVING & LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE VOB 3/2/21
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111495

SIRCHIE

0522165-IN ET SUPPLIES

0523197-IN ET SUPPLIES

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111496
SOUTHWEST TOWN MECHANICAL
512066286 JETT FAN REPAIR AT PARKING DECK

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111497
SPEER FINANCIAL INC
D7/21-12 2021 DISCLOSURE FILING

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111498
STERLING CODIFIERS INC '
13174 2022-23 WEB HOSTING FEE

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111499
STREICHERS
11522513 BULLETPROOF VEST- NEW HIRE/WHEATON

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111500
SUBURBAN DOOR CHECK
IN542899 KEYS FOR PARKING DECK
IN542932 REPAIR LOCK AT WATER PLANT

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111501

Page Number 15 of 19
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3,066.26

211.49
230.48
233.99
294,98
279.47
1,250.41

10,687.50
10,687.50

6,896.00
13,122.50
20,018.50

68.99
63.18
132.17

603.00
603.00

1,120.00
1,120.00

500.00
500.00

745.49
745.49

31.58
148.00
179.58
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SUBURBAN LABORATORIES, IN

197396 " DBPR SAMPLES 420.00
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111502 420.00

SUSMARSKI, KEVIN

12202021 EXPENSE REPORT- STAFF AND COMMEND TRAINING 94.62
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111503 94.62

SWARD, CARTER

12-20-21 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE FOR 2021 655.84
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111504 655.84

TERRY PLUMBING CO

211658 EMERGENCY REPAIR LEAK MEM HALL 1,794.87
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111505 1,794.87

THE HINSDALEAN

38079 NONPROFIT AD-GIFT CARD 715.00
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111506 715.00

THE KNOT WORLDWIDE INC

INVUSD591467774 LODGE MARKETING 1,200.00
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111507 1,200.00

THE LAW OFFICES OF AARON H. REINKE

H-12-16-2021 ADMIN HEARINGS-TOWINGS 150.00
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111508 150.00

THE POLICE & SHERIFFS

156203 EMPLOYEE ID CARDS 62.95
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111509 62.95

THE STEVENS GROUP

0127831 FORMS- TOW SHEETS 317.68
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111510 317.68

THOMPSON ELEVATOR INSPEC

21-2884 3RD PARTY ELEVATOR INSPECT/RVW 100.00
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111511 100.00

THOMSON REUTERS WEST

845428543 ONLINE/SOFTWARE SUBS. 11/01-11/30 233.02

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111512 233.02



Warrant Register 1751

Invoice Description

TOSHIBA AMER BUSINESS SOLUTIONS

5667370 COPIER MAINT 11/1-11/30/21
5667370 COPIER MAINT 11/1-11/30/21
5667433 COPIER MAINT 11/1-11/30/21

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111513
TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICE
460193659 COPIER LEASE NOV SC1LK27546
460193659 COPIER LEASE NOV SC1LK27546

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111514
TRAFFIC SERVICES INC

97249 NO PARKING SIGNS
97250 TELSPAR POSTS
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111515
ULINE
142809498 OFFICE CHAIRS

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111516
UNIVERISTY OF ILLINOIS
UFIW2427 FIRESETTER INTERVENTION TRAINING
~ Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111517

VERIZON WIRELESS

9893541491 OCT 24-NOV 23 MONTHLY DATA USAGE
9893541491 OCT 24-NOV 23 MONTHLY DATA USAGE
9893862863 OCT 29-NOV 28 MONTHY DATA USAGE
9893862863 OCT 29-NOV 28 MONTHY DATA USAGE"’
9893862863 OCT 29-NOV 28 MONTHY DATA USAGE

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111518
VILLAGE OF LEMONT

2022-0000051 RANGE CHARGE -11/15/2021
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111519
VILLAGE TRUE VALUE HDWE

247480-11/29 KLM LODGE TARP & BUNGE CORDS

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111520
WAREHOUSE DIRECT INC

5064369-1 AIR SPRAY UNIT REFILL CANS
5119627-0 ADMIN OFFICE SUPPLIES
5118602-0 LODGE JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
5101533-0 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES

Page Number 17 of 19

Invoice/Amount

198.79
85.20
142.79
1426.78

192.50
82.50
275.00

1,235.00
7,113.00
8,348.00

424.39
424.39

200.00
200.00

50.04
38.01
524.65
264.51
125.88
1,003.09

100.00
100.00

35.97
35.97

92.21
25.73
48.28
151.32



Page Number 18 of 19
Warrant Register 1751

Invoice Description Invoice/Amount
5123283-0 ADMIN OFFICE SUPPLIES 15.86
5119499-0 OFFICE AND PATROL SUPPLIES 278.07
5122894-0 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 41.36
5051254-0 OFFICE SUPPLIES 101.08
5116050-0 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 449.70
5119478-0 FACE MASKS FOR FRONT COUNTER 248.70
5128870-0 OFFICE SUPPLIES 572.38
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111521 2,024.69
WEST CENTRAL MUNICIPAL CONFERENCE
0007204-IN TREE PLANTING VOB 7/1/21 25,586.00
0007204-IN TREE PLANTING VOB 7/1/21 1,170.00
0007204-IN TREE PLANTING VOB 7/1/21 375.00
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111522 27,131.00
WEX BANK
76424881 UNLEADED FUEL NOV21 89.42
76424881 UNLEADED FUEL NOV21 404.84
76424881 UNLEADED FUEL NOV21 4,715.89
76424881 UNLEADED FUEL NOV21 865.88
76424881 UNLEADED FUEL NOV21 293.48
76424881 UNLEADED FUEL NOV21 } 120.80
76424881 UNLEADED FUEL NOV21 122.73
76424881 UNLEADED FUEL NOV21 ‘ 501.50
76424881 UNLEADED FUEL NOV21 859.26
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111523 7,973.80
WEX HEALTH INC
0001443942-IN NOV21 MONTHLY FSA 12.75
0001443942-IN NOV21 MONTHLY FSA 25.50
0001443942-IN NOV21 MONTHLY FSA 21.25
0001443942-IN- NOV21 MONTHLY FSA 4.25
0001443942-IN NOV21 MONTHLY FSA 4.25
0001443942-IN NOV21 MONTHLY FSA 12.75
Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111524 80.75
WILLIAMS ASSOC ARCHITECTS
0020689 COMMUNITY POOL ARCHITECTS 2,932.65
0020637 COMMUNITY POOL ARCHITECTS 6,817.33

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111525 9,749.98



Warrant Register 1751

Invoice Description

WILLOWBROOK FORD INC

6362677/1 REPAIRS DONE ON SQUAD 44
632814/1 REPAIRS ON SQUAD 25 CSO
6363528/1 INSPECTION/ PARTS FOR #25

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111526
WINDY CITY NINJAS
9 NOVEMBER 2021 SESSIONS

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111527
WINTER EQUIPMENT
V49465 HEAVY DUTY CURB GUARDS

Check Date 12/30/2021 Total For Check # 111528
AFLAC-FLEXONE
15050 Payroll Run 1 - Warrant PR2126

Check Date 12/23/2021 Total For Check # 111529
NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOL

15049 Payroll Run 1 - Warrant PR2126

Check Date 12/23/2021 Total For Check # 111530
NATIONWIDE TRUST CO FSB
15051 Payroll Run 1 - Warrant PR2126

Check Date 12/23/2021 Total For Check # 111531
STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT
15052 Payroll Run 1 - Warrant PR2126
Check Date 12/23/2021 Total For Check # 111532
Total For ALL Checks

Page Number 19 of 19

Invoice/Amount

2,895.39
2,779.25

214.66
5,889.30

840.00
840.00

2,353.66
2,353.66

795.51
795.51

200.00
200.00

23,267.33
23,267.33

230.77
230.77
471,500.62



VILLAGE OF

RECAP BY FUND

GENERAL FUND

2019 GO LIMITED TAX BOND

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

WATER & SEWER OPERATIONS FUND
WATER & SEWER CAPITAL FUND
ESCROW FUND

SSA # 13 DEBT SERVICE FUND
PAYROLL REVOLVING FUND
LIBRARY OPERATIONS

Warrant Summary by Fund:

\

FUND NUMBER

100
309
400
600
620
720
725
740
900
TOTALS:

END OF REPORT

FUND TOTAL

336,641.53
475.00
57,286.46
32,080.61
366.10
13,000.00
1,225.00
30,413.17
12.75
471,500.62












VILLAGE OF HINSDALE

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN EXTERIOR APPEARANCE AND SITE PLAN
REVIEW FOR AN EXISTING BUILDING - 4 N. WASHINGTON STREET -
J.P. MORGAN CHASE

WHEREAS, Terron Wright and The Architects Partnership, Ltd., on behalf of
J.P. Morgan Chase/Chase Bank (the “Applicant”), has submitted an application (the
“Application”) seeking exterior appearance and site plan approval for changes to the
parking lot of an existing two-story building located at 4 N. Washington Street (the
“Subject Property”) in the B-1 Community Business Zoning District. The Subject
Property is legally described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof;
and

WHEREAS, the improvements proposed by the Applicant include the
installation of two (2) parking lot light poles and one (1) wall-mounted light in the
parking lot (collectively, the “Proposed Improvements”). The Proposed Improvements
are depicted in the Exterior Appearance and Site Plan documents attached hereto as
Exhibit B and made a part hereof; and

WHEREAS, the Application has been referred to the Plan Commission of the
Village and has been processed in accordance with the Hinsdale Zoning Code
(“Zoning Code”), as amended; and

WHEREAS, on November 10, 2021 the Plan Commission of the Village of
Hinsdale reviewed the Application at a public meeting pursuant to notice given in
accordance with the Zoning Code; and

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission, after considering all of the testimony and
evidence presented at the public meeting, recommended approval of the proposed
Exterior Appearance and Site Plan on a vote of five (5) ayes, zero (0) nays, and four
(4) absent, all as set forth in the Plan Commission’s Findings and Recommendation
in this case (“Findings and Recommendation”), a copy of which is attached hereto as
Exhibit C and made a part hereof; and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees have duly considered the
Findings and Recommendation of the Plan Commission, and all of the materials,
facts and circumstances affecting the Application, and find that the Application
satisfies the standards established in subsection 11-604 of the Zoning Code
governing site plan review, and the standards established in subsection 11-606 of the
Zoning Code governing exterior appearance review, subject to the conditions stated
in this Ordinance.
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NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of
Trustees of the Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties and State of lllinois,
as follows:

SECTION 1: Recitals. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this
Ordinance by this reference as findings of the President and Board of Trustees.

SECTION 2: Adoption of Findings and Recommendation. The President and
Board of Trustees of the Village of Hinsdale approve and adopt the findings and
recommendation of the Plan Commission, a copy of which is attached hereto as
ExhibitC and made a part hereof, and incorporate such findings and
recommendation herein by reference as if fully set forth herein.

SECTION 3: Approval of Exterior Appearance and Site Plans. The Board of
Trustees, acting pursuant to the authority vested in it by the laws of the State of
lllinois and Sections 11-604 and 11-606 of the Hinsdale Zoning Code, approves the
Exterior Appearance and Site Plans detailing the Proposed Improvements attached
to, and by this reference, incorporated into this Ordinance as Exhibit B (the
“Approved Plans”), subject to the conditions set forth in Section 4 of this Ordinance.

SECTION 4: Conditions on Approvals. The approvals granted in Section 3 of
this Ordinance are expressly subject to all of the following conditions:

A. Compliance with Plans. All work on the exterior of the Subject Property
shall be undertaken only in strict compliance with the Approved Plans
attached as Exhibit B.

B. Compliance with Codes, Ordinances, and Regulations. Except as
specifically set forth in this Ordinance, the provisions of the Hinsdale
Municipal Code and the Hinsdale Zoning Code shall apply and govern
all development on, and improvement of, the Subject Property. All such
development and improvement shall comply with all Village codes,
ordinances, and regulations at all times.

C. Building Permits. The Applicant shall submit all required building permit
applications and other materials in a timely manner to the appropriate
parties, which materials shall be prepared in compliance with all
applicable Village codes and ordinances.

D. Installation of Light Shield. A light shield shall be installed on the north
side of the east parking lot light, labeled S2 on the photometric plan.

SECTION 5: Violation of Condition or Code. Any violation of any term or
condition stated in this Ordinance, or of any applicable code, ordinance, or regulation
of the Village, shall be grounds for rescission by the Board of Trustees of the
approvals set forth in this Ordinance.
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SECTION 6: Severability and Repeal of Inconsistent Ordinances. Each
section, paragraph, clause and provision of this Ordinance is separable, and if any
section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be held
unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, the unconstitutionality or invalidity of such
section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect the remainder of this
Ordinance, nor any part thereof, other than that part affected by such decision. All
ordinances, resolutions or orders, or parts thereof, in conflict with the provisions of
this Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict are hereby repealed.

SECTION 7: Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect
from and after its passage, approval, and publication in the manner provided by law.

ADOPTED this day of , 2021, pursuant to a
roll call vote as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED by me this day of , 2021, and
attested to by the Village Clerk this same day.

Thomas K. Cauley, Jr., Village President

ATTEST:

Christine M. Bruton, Village Clerk

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT BY THE APPLICANT TO THE
CONDITIONS OF THIS ORDINANCE:

By:

Its:

Date: , 2021

501256_1 3



EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY

PART OF LOT 2, BLOCK 4, STOUGH'S ADDITION TO THE TOWN OF
HINSDALE, PART OF THE SOUTHWEST Y. OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 38
NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, VILLAGE OF
HINSDALE, DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

P.I.N.: 09-01-331-010

COMMONLY KNOWN AS: 4 NORTH WASHINGTON STREET, HINSDALE, IL
60521
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EXHIBIT B

APPROVED EXTERIOR APPEARANCE AND SITE PLANS

(ATTACHED)

501256_1






olv

v

RAAEENN
IVANISIUHDA Y

ST

diysiaupiog
SIOSYRIY

(-
2 (@)
2= =
16> =
2:® O
iz =
_HnlnM
262z =
236 T
200 =Z
230
RZ=>
m= O
m UV
o =
m

© 3SVHD

CTRES

oo (TN

e (O Fan
1v130 3SvE 3104 LHOIT \ 2/

=B RO
,,MNMVCNN

NY1d 3LIS WINLOILIHOYY \ * /
































































EXHIBIT C
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE PLAN COMMISSION

(ATTACHED)
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FINDINGS OF FACT AND RECOMMENDATION
OF THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION
TO THE VILLAGE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES

APPLICATION: Case A-26-2021 — 4 N. Washington Street — Chase Bank Parking Lot Lighting —
Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review to allow for the installation of two 2)
parking lot light poles and one (1) wall-mounted light for Chase Bank located at 4
N. Washington Street in the B-1 Community Business District

PROPERTY: 4 N. Washington Street, Hinsdale, IL (PIN: 09-01-331-010)
.APPLICANT: Terron Wright, The Architects Partnership, Ltd.
REQUEST: Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review

PLAN COMMISSION (PC) REVIEW: November 10, 2021
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 1°" READING: December 14, 2021

SUMMARY OF REQUEST: The Village of Hinsdale received an application request from Terron Wright
with The Architects Partnership, Ltd. requesting approval of an Exterior Appearance and Site Plan
Review to allow for the installation of two (2) parking lot light poles and one (1) wall-mounted light in the
parking lot of Chase Bank located at 4 N. Washington Street in the B-1 Community Business District.

The existing two-story building is occupied by Chase Bank and the site contains two parking lot areas
located on the east and west sides of the building. The north side of the subject property is directly
adjacent to Eve Assisted Living located in the R-5 Multiple Family Residential District. A gas station and
convenience store is located to the south across Chicago Avenue in the B-1 Community Business
District, a multi-tenant office building is located to the west across a public alley in the B-1 Community
Business District, and the Memorial Building consisting of the Hinsdale Public Library and Village Hall is
located to.the east across Washington Street in the IB Institutional Buildings District.

The subject property is not located in the Downtown Historic District and therefore the project does not
require a review by the Historic Preservation Commission.

PUBLIC MEETING SUMMARY AND FINDINGS: On November 10, the request for approval of an
Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review was reviewed at a public meeting by the Plan Commission.
John Krissoff, the Market Director of Real Estate for Chase Bank and Amy Ferguson with The
Architects Partnership, Ltd. provided an overview of the proposed parking lot lights and answered
questions from the Commissioners.

Mr. Krissoff stated the existing parking lot is very dark at night and they have received complaints from
customers and staff. Chase Bank is requesting to install lighting on site to increase safety.

Ms. Ferguson provided an overview of the proposed project and stated they have worked with Eve
Assisted Living to the north since August 2020. They have gone through several plan iterations with
Eve Assisted Living and the plans presented to the Plan Commission does not produce light along the
majority of the shared property line, with the exception of the northeast corner. However, the light levels
at the property line are below the 0.5 foot-candles allowed per the Village’s Zoning Code.




Commissioner Krillenberger asked for ciarification if Eve Assisted Living to the north had reviewed or
approved the plans. Ms. Ferguson stated that this plan was the seventh version of the plans created
from working with Eve Assisted Living and they have tried to pull the light as far away from the lot line
as possible.

Mr. Krissoff also clarified that they have not received approval from Eve Assisted Living, but they have
not objected and Chase Bank has tried to address all of their concerns. No one representing Eve
Assisted Living was in attendance at the meeting to provide public comment.

There was a discussion on if the fixtures would be able to be seen from any adjacent windows. Ms.
Ferguson noted that there were windows, but the light poles are low in height and there are trees to
help block views. The parking lot light on the west side of the site would include a shield that would help
block light to the north.

Chairman Cashman and Commissioner Crnovich asked if a shield was considered for the east parking
lot light. Ms. Ferguson stated the east pole was further away from the building located to the north so
they did not include a shield. Chairman Cashman expressed concern that windows may be able to see
the fixture from their windows.

There was a discussion on the lighting levels and color temperature. The light fixtures will also have a
3000K color temperature, which is the warmest color made for this fixture.

Commissioner Crnovich stated she would like to see a shield installed on the east parking lot light to
prevent any windows on the Eve Assisted Living from seeing the light fixture and reduce light at the
north property line. Ms. Ferguson stated that they are willing to install a shield.

There was a discussion on the hours of operation. The applicant confirmed the current regular hours
are 9am to 5pm with the ATM open 24 hours a day. Chairman Cashman asked if there are any plans to
provide dimmed or security lighting after hours. There was a discussion that the proposed lighting
levels are very low and are basically at dimmed security levels.

Overall, the Commissioners expressed support for the project. In recommending approva! of the
Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review, the Plan Commission determined the standards set forth in
Section 11-604(F) and Section 11-606(F) of the Village’s Zoning Code have been met. Overall, the
Commission expressed support for the project and commended the applicant for working with Eve
Assisted Living on the lighting plans.

No members of the public provided comment at the meeting. Staff did not receive comments from
members of the public prior to the meeting.

A motion to approve the Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review was made by Commissioner
Crnovich and seconded by Commissioner Curry, subject to the condition that the applicant install a light
shield on the north side of the parking lot light fixture located on the east side of the property. The vote
carried by a roll call vote as follows:

AYES: Commissioners Crnovich, Curry, Krillenberger, Willobee and Chairman Cashman
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN:  None

ABSENT: Commissioners Carter, Fiascone, Hurley, and Jablonski




RECOMMENDATIONS: Based on the findings set forth above, the Village of Hinsdale Plan
Commission, by a vote of five (5) ayes and zero (0) nays recommended to the President and Board of
Trustees approval of Case A-26-2021, an Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review for Chase Bank
located at 4 N. Washington Street, subject to the following condition:

1. A light shield is installed on the north side of the east parking lot light, labeled S2 on the
photometric plan.

Signed:

Steve Cashma¥, Chair
Plan Commission
Village of Hinsdale

Date: \{b/ %/ q/'
















VILLAGE OF HINSDALE

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN EXTERIOR APPEARANCE AND SITE PLAN
REVIEW FOR IMPROVEMENTS TO AN EXISTING BUILDING - 36 E. HINSDALE
AVENUE - PERFORMANCE WEALTH MANAGEMENT

WHEREAS, Courtland, LLC., on behalf of Performance Wealth Management
(the “Applicant”), has submitted an application (the “Application”) seeking exterior
appearance, site plan, and sign permit approval for the installation of one new wall
sign and changes to the exterior fagade of the existing two-story building located at
36 E. Hinsdale Avenue (the “Subject Property”) in the B-2 Central Business Zoning
District. Proposed improvements include exterior changes to the front fagcade of the
building with a new door surround to be installed for the second floor tenant space,
lighting to be installed over the new door surround, and a new wall sign to be
installed in the new header of the entrance way; exterior changes to the rear fagade
in the form of reskinning one of two awnings with new fabric over an entrance door at
the rear of the building (collectively, the “Proposed Improvements”). The Subject
Property is legally described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof.
The Proposed Improvements are depicted in the Exterior Appearance and Site Plan
documents attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part hereof; and

WHEREAS, the Subject Property is currently improved with a two-story
commercial building, which is classified as a Contributing Structure in the Downtown
Hinsdale National Register Historic District. The Subject Property was previously
used as a garage for a Ford Motor Dealership and later used as a toy store, and the
Applicant currently occupies the second floor as Performance Wealth Management,
an office specializing in financial planning and wealth management. The first floor of
the Subject Property is occupied by Salon Lofts, a beauty salon; and

WHEREAS, the Application has been referred to the Plan Commission of the
Village and has been processed in accordance with the Hinsdale Zoning Code
(“Zoning Code”), as amended; and

WHEREAS, the Application was first reviewed by the Historic Preservation
Commission at a public meeting on November 3, 2021. The Historic Preservation
Commission recommended approval of the Proposed Improvements with certain
conditions, on a vote of four (4) in favor, zero (0) opposed and three (3) absent; and

WHEREAS, on November 10, 2021 the Plan Commission of the Village of
Hinsdale reviewed the Application at a public meeting pursuant to notice given in
accordance with the Zoning Code; and

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission, after considering all of the testimony and

evidence presented at the public meeting, recommended approval of the proposed
Exterior Appearance and Site Plan on a vote of five (5) ayes, zero (0), nays, and four
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(4) absent, subject to certain conditions. A sign permit over which the Plan
Commission had final authority was also approved. The recommendation for
approval and a summary of the related proceedings are set forth in the Plan
Commission’s Findings and Recommendation in this case (“Findings and
Recommendation”), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit C and made a part
hereof; and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees have duly considered the
Findings and Recommendation of the Plan Commission, and all of the materials,
facts and circumstances affecting the Application, and find that the Application
satisfies the standards established in subsection 11-604F of the Zoning Code
governing site plan review, the standards established in subsection 11-606E of the
Zoning Code governing exterior appearance review, subject to the conditions stated
in this Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of
Trustees of the Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties and State of lllinois,
as follows:

SECTION 1: Recitals. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this
Ordinance by this reference as findings of the President and Board of Trustees.

SECTION 2: Adoption of Findings and Recommendation. The President and
Board of Trustees of the Village of Hinsdale approve and adopt the findings and
recommendation of the Plan Commission, a copy of which is attached hereto as
ExhibitC and made a part hereof, and incorporate such findings and
recommendation herein by reference as if fully set forth herein.

SECTION 3: Approval of Exterior Appearance and Site Plans. The Board of
Trustees, acting pursuant to the authority vested in it by the laws of the State of
lllinois and Sections 11-604 and 11-606 of the Hinsdale Zoning Code, approves the
Exterior Appearance and Site Plans for the Proposed Improvements as attached to,
and by this reference, incorporated into, this Ordinance as Exhibit B (the “Approved
Plans”), subject to the conditions set forth in Section 4 of this Ordinance.

SECTION 4: Conditions on Approvals. The approvals granted in Section 3 of
this Ordinance are expressly subject to all of the following conditions:

A. Compliance with Plans. All work on the exterior of the Subject Property
shall be undertaken only in strict compliance with the Approved Plans
attached as Exhibit B.

B. Compliance with Codes, Ordinances, and Regulations. Except as
specifically set forth in this Ordinance, the provisions of the Hinsdale
Municipal Code and the Hinsdale Zoning Code shall apply and govern
all development on, and improvement of, the Subject Property. All such
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development and improvement shall comply with all Village codes,
ordinances, and regulations at all times.

C. Building Permits. The Applicant shall submit all required building permit
applications and other materials in a timely manner to the appropriate
parties, which materials shall be prepared in compliance with all
applicable Village codes and ordinances.

D. Plan Modifications. The two (2) foot tall wood entrance header be
lowered in height by two (2) feet and the pilasters on each side of the
entrance are reduced in height so that the existing stone trim to the left
of the header will be visible (this condition was addressed by the
submission of revised plans prior to the approval of this Ordinance).

E. No Shutters. Shutters are not to be installed on the second floor.

SECTION 5: Violation of Condition or Code. Any violation of any term or
condition stated in this Ordinance, or of any applicable code, ordinance, or regulation
of the Village, shall be grounds for rescission by the Board of Trustees of the
approvals set forth in this Ordinance.

SECTION 6: Severability and Repeal of Inconsistent Ordinances. Each
section, paragraph, clause and provision of this Ordinance is separable, and if any
section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be held
unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, the unconstitutionality or invalidity of such
section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect the remainder of this
Ordinance, nor any part thereof, other than that part affected by such decision. All
ordinances, resolutions or orders, or parts thereof, in conflict with the provisions of
this Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict are hereby repealed.

SECTION 7: Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect
from and after its passage, approval, and publication in the manner provided by law.
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ADOPTED this day of , 2021, pursuant to a
roll call vote as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED by me this day of , 2021, and
attested to by the Village Clerk this same day.

Thomas K. Cauley, Jr., Village President

ATTEST:

Christine M. Bruton, Village Clerk

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT BY THE APPLICANT TO THE
CONDITIONS OF THIS ORDINANCE:

By:

Its:

Date: , 2021
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EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY

LOT 1 (EXCEPT THE EAST 49.35 FEET THEREOF) ALL OF LOT 2 AND THE
EAST 75 FEET OF LOT 3 IN LAKE’S SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 1, 3, AND 4 IN
BLOCK 2 OF THE ORIGINAL TOWN OF HINSDALE IN THE EAST 1/2 OF THE
NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF
THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF
RECORDED NOVEMBER 4, 1871, AS DOCUMENT 14562, IN DUPAGE COUNTY,
ILLINOIS.

P.I.N.: 09-12-129-005
COMMONLY KNOWN AS: 36 EAST HINSDALE AVENUE, HINSDALE, IL 60521
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EXHIBIT B

APPROVED EXTERIOR APPEARANCE AND SITE PLANS

(ATTACHED)
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9/5/21:3:23 PM 120V 16" Small Gooseneck Light for Art Galleries & Diners | LED Spot
5]

How Can We Help You Today?
(281) 972-5006

LOGIN (/MY-ACCOUNT/) REGISTER (/MY-ACCOUNT/)

Home Lighting Products +  Commercial Lighting Info +  Photometric Design  Build A Quote About Us ~

Search far products... 4 SEARCH

(htt(htt(httyded;

LED Spot (https://www.ledspot.com)  Products (https://www.ledspot.com/shop/) Gooseneck & Sign Lighting (https://www.ledspot.com/sign-
gooseneck-lighting/)  Gooseneck Sign Lighting (https://www ledspot.com/sign-gooseneck-lighting/gooseneck-sign-lighting/)  Smail Gooseneck
Light (https://www.ledspot.com/sign-gooseneck-lighting/gooseneck-sign-lighting/small-gooseneck-light/) Small Gooseneck Light

Small Gooseneck Light

SKU: LS-15859

Categories: Gooseneck & Sign Lighting (https://www.ledspot.com/sign-
gooseneck-lighting/), Gooseneck Sign Lighting
(https://www.ledspot.com/sign-gooseneck-lighting/gooseneck-sign-
lighting/). Small Gooseneck Light (https.//www.ledspot.com/sign-
gooseneck-lighting/gooseneck-sign-lighting/small-gooseneck-light/)

512

5 $111.09

Paint Color  Blck (Standare)

ADD TO CART

(https://www.ledspot.com/wp-
content/uploads/2020/01/1487347133_small-gooseneck-
light-1.jpg)

Description  Additional information Reviews (0) Documents (1)

Description

Extending 16 inches from its mount, the Small Gooseneck Light suits smaller lighting applications with a classic gooseneck design.
The fixture sits at lower mounting heights to illuminate small signs and murals. Its durable aluminum material comes in many
colors to match any environment. Bulb not included.

‘Please consuit with LED Spot for lead time estimates.

SHOP BY
Parking Lot Lighting & Poles (/parking-lot-lighting) +
Athletic & Sports Field Lighting (/sports-lighting) +

Privacy & Cookies Policy

hitps:/iwww ledspot .com/sign-gooscncck-lighliuglgooscneck-sign-lighling/small-gooscncck-lighl/small-gooseucck-ligh!/ 113



9/5/21:3:23 PM 120V 16" Small Gooseneck Light for Art Galleries & Diners | LED Spot

Gooseneck & Sign Lighting (/sign-gooseneck-lighting)
Wall Pack & Security Lights (/wall-mount-lighting)
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90+ LIGHTING A19 BULB 9W

High quality of light and color rendering (90+ CRI, 50+ R9),
with low flicker, flicker <30%,
Smooth dimming. Dimming lower than 10%.

ELECTRICAL SPECIFICATIONS

SE-350.069 . 80LM . 9w 2700k | 270" i >09 | -
SE-350.070  80OLM ow 3000K 270° >0.9 -

MECHANICAL SPECIFICATIONS

SE-350.069 ; 2.40inX4.43in - 2.1502 b :‘0 -30°C l 12pcs I 48pcs
SE-350.070 2.40in X 4.43in 2,150z -20°C-40°C 12pcs 48pcs
60.96 mm
(2.40in)
g _
Ec
g
o
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SE-350.069 _SE-350.070~ Rev. MARCH 2019 | A SAVEENERGY Company
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FINDINGS OF FACT AND RECOMMENDATION
OF THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION
TO THE VILLAGE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES

APPLICATION: Case A-25-2021 — 36 E. Hinsdale Avenue — Performance Wealth Management —
Exterior Appearance Review, Site Plan Review, and Sign Permit Review to allow
for the installation of one (1) new wall sign and exterior changes to the fagade of
the building located at 36 E. Hinsdale Avenue in the B-2 Central Business District

PROPERTY: 36 E. Hinsdale Avenue, Hinsdale, IL (PIN: 09-12-129-005)
APPLICANT: Courtland, LLC
REQUEST: Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review

PLAN COMMISSION (PC) REVIEW: November 10, 2021
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 15T READING: December 14, 2021

SUMMARY OF REQUEST: The Village of Hinsdale received an application from Courtiand, LLC
requesting approval of an Exterior Appearance Review, Site Plan Review, and Sign Permit Review to
allow for the installation of one (1) new wall sign and changes to front and rear fagade of the existing
two-story building for Performance Wealth Management located at 36 E. Hinsdale Avenue in the B-2
Central Business District.

The first floor tenant space in the building is occupied by Salon Lofts, a beauty salon, and the second
floor is occupied by Performance Wealth, which operates an office specializing in financial planning and
wealth management.

The subject property is located in the Downtown Historic District. According to the 2006 National
Register of Historic Places Nomination and the 2003 Architectural Resources in the Downtown Survey
Area, the building is classified as a Contributing Structure in the Historic District. The building was
constructed in 1924 and features Two-Part Commercial Block architecture. According to the 2003
Downtown Survey, the building was formerly used as a garage for a Ford Motor Dealership once
located in the adjacent building at 40 E. Hinsdale Avenue and was later converted into a toy store. The
building has been altered over time, including most recently in 2018, when a new alcove and entrance
way were constructed for the second floor tenant space and modifications were made to the existing
first floor storefront.

The project was reviewed at a public meeting by the Historic Preservation Commission on November 3,
2021. The Commission expressed concern over the shutters and design of the entrance way. The
Historic Preservation Commission recommended approval of Case A-25-2021, an Exterior Appearance
and Site Plan Review for 36 E. Hinsdale Avenue — Performance Wealth Management, by a vote of 4-0
(3 absent), subject to the following conditions:

1. The second-floor shutters are eliminated.

2. The height of the pediment is reduced to the point where the top of the cap aligns with either the
bottom of the limestone to the east or the top of the window to the west.

3. The pilasters are narrowed in width to reflect the new pediment height and so that the pediment
will not encroach the adjacent window.




PUBLIC MEETING SUMMARY AND FINDINGS: On November 10, the request for approval of an
Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review was reviewed at a public meeting by the Plan Commission.
Mike Zalud of Courtland, LLC provided an overview of the proposed parking lot lights and answered
questions from the Commissioners.

Chairman Cashman stated that the project was reviewed by the Historic Preservation Commission on
November 3. The Commission provided good comments on the overlapping of the pilasters with the
brick and stone trim and expressed concerns regarding the shutters.

Chairman Cashman noted it may be helpful to bring revised plans back to the following Plan
Commission meeting to review changes that address the previous comments. Mr. Zalud stated the he
understood that the revised plans would be sure not to cover the limestone band and the header trim
would be brought down in height to cover the transom window above the door. The top of the header
would be roughly aligned with the bottom of the limestone band, leading to about a two (2) foot
reduction in overall height. The header would be of the same size as currently proposed to fit the same
sign shown in the submitted plans.

Mr. Zalud stated that they need to narrow the pilasters to not conflict with the adjacent storefront
window and limestone. The existing fire alarm, knox box, and strobe light also need to be relocated.
Chairman Cashman stated he would be comfortable with sending this to the Board subject to the
Chairman reviewing the plans ahead of time to make sure the former comments were addressed and
the conditions were met. '

Commissioner Krillenberger asked for clarification if the transom window would be removed. It was
noted that the window would not be removed, but it would be visually covered as the header panel
would be lower in height.

Chairman Cashman stated he was not in support of the shutters and asked if the applicant was okay
with removing them. Mr. Zalud noted that they wanted to use them to dress up the plain looking
building, but they are okay with not installing them.

There was also a short discussion on the rear entrance used by customers.

Commissioner Curry asked if the applicant considered using a different door to increase visibility of the
second floor entrance way. Mr. Zalud stated the door is set about four (4) feet back inside the alcove,
so a different door would not provide as much visibility from the street compared to new trim and a
header. The design was intended to look like the adjacent entrance on the Corner Bakery building.

Commissioner Krillenberger asked for clarification on if the sign would be altered if the applicant made
changes to the header and entrance trim recommended by the Plan Commission. It was clarified that
the entire panel would be lowered in height and the sign would not change. The gooseneck lights would
also be lowered in height.

In recommending approval of the Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review, the Plan Commission
determined the standards set forth in Section 11-604(F) and Section 11-606(F) of the Village's Zoning
Code have been met. No members of the public provided comment at the meeting. Staff did not receive
comments from members of the public prior to the meeting.




A motion to approve the Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review was made by Commissioner
Willobee and seconded by Commissioner Crnovich, subject to the condition that the application does
not install shutters on the second floor windows and that height of the top header and pilasters is

reduced to not overlap with the limestone banding and adjacent window. The vote carried by a roll call
vote as follows:

AYES: Commissioners Cmovich, Curry, Krillenberger, Willobee and Chairman Cashman
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Commissioners Carter, Fiascone, Hurley, and Jablonski

RECOMMENDATIONS: Based on the findings set forth above, the Village of Hinsdale Plan
Commission, by a vote of five (5) ayes and zero (0) nays recommended to the President and Board of
Trustees approval of Case A-25-2021, an Exterior Appearance Review, Site Plan Review, and Sign
Permit Review to allow for the installation of one (1) new wall sign and exterior changes to the fagade of
the building located at 36 E. Hinsdale Avenue in the B-2 Central Business District, subject to the
following conditions:

1. The two (2) foot tall wood entrance header be lowered in height by two (2) feet and the pilasters
on each side of the entrance are reduced in height so that the existing stone trim to the left of
the header will be visible.

2. Shutters are not installed on the second floor.

Signed: _ %@W‘/\Md GZA/“MM
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Steve Cashman, Chair
Plan Commission
Village of Hinsdale

Date: l/)// 0@/ U
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